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Corporate Information (continued)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITRBEE

Dear investors,

As time flies, renewal is across the land. The year 2022, which has
just passed, was an eventful year. China, amid turbulent international
environment, rose to the challenges and forged ahead by intensifying its
efforts in macroeconomic control to cope with shocks from sharper-than-
expected factors, successfully securing overall economic and social stability,
drawing up a grand blueprint for great rejuvenation of the Chinese nation
and sounding the trumpet of the times for forging ahead a new journey.

In 2022, VSTECS, facing with opportunities and challenges, actively
improved its digital ecology and continuously enhanced operational
efficiency with focus on its established targets, so as to improve operating
management, while constantly strengthening its cultural development and
seeking progress while maintaining steady to forge ahead. The Group
recorded sound results, demonstrating clear resilience.
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During the reporting period, the Group recorded a turnover of HK$77.3
billion, the net profit attributable to shareholders, net of tax of HK$823 million,
and the return on equity (ROE) of 11.3%. These achievements were mainly
due to the fact that (i) the Group continuously improved its operation and
management level, while strictly controlling risks and improving efficiency; (ii)
the digital service level of the Group was further upgraded with the launch
of a new order management system that integrates information, capital,
logistics and commerce; and (3) the digital potential energy of industries in
China and Southeast Asia has been continuously released, coupled with the
recovery in the demand of end customers.

In terms of business segments, cloud computing segment, the consumer
electronics segment and the enterprise system segment all achieved sound
development. In 2022, the turnover of the cloud computing segment was
HK$2.9 billion; the turnover of the consumer electronics segment was
HK$33.1 billion; and the revenue of the enterprise system segment was
HK$41.4 billion.

In terms of region segments, during the reporting period, the turnover from
North Asia amounted to approximately HK$60.1 billion, accounting for
78% of the Group’s total turnover, while the turnover from Southeast Asia
amounted to approximately HK$17.2 billion, accounting for 22% of the
Group’s total turnover.

With its operation for more than 30 years, VSTECS has grown from an
entrepreneurial technology company of distribution and IT integrated services
to an important service provider of channel development and technology
solution integration for technology products in Asia Pacific. Turnover of
VSTECS has grown rapidly from HK$1.6 billion in 2002 to HK$77.3 billion
in 2022, with an average annual growth rate of 26%. The level of digital
and intelligent services is also constantly improving. Meanwhile, VSTECS
also made full use of the new technology processing capabilities such as
big data, block chain and artificial intelligence to facilitate the intelligent
transformation of digital services in China and the entire Asia Pacific, thereby
empowering the digital and intelligent development in the new era.

During the reporting period, the Group’s business developed as scheduled
in the established strategic direction, and the main progress was as follows:
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EE ﬁ #ﬁ & i ( =4 )

Strengthened the deployment of cloud
computing business and achieved progress in
independent research and development

In the era of cloud computing, the Group has reached strategic
cooperation with many top enterprises in the industry by virtue of its
outstanding technical strength and quality service. In financial year
2022, the Group continued to deepen cooperation with leading cloud
vendors, such as Alibaba Cloud, Huawei Cloud, AWS and VMware, to
actively explore cloud computing scenarios and business iteration, and
drew a new growth curve on the basis of constantly consolidating the
traditional AGG model.

In cooperation with Alibaba Cloud and other cloud vendors, the
Group analyzed the diverse needs of users to continuously integrates
products of laaS, PaaS and SaaS, and innovatively launched Vplus
Cloud Platform to promote the integration of management, sales
and service of cloud resources. Meanwhile, the Group cooperated
with Huawei Cloud to jointly explore the cloud market of power,
manufacturing, finance and other industries by rolling out diversified
cloud solutions, thereby receiving the Huawei Cloud Ecological
Outstanding Contribution Award, Huawei Cloud CTSP certification,
etc., marking the unanimous recognition from vendors and users on
our cloud technical strength and cloud service ability.

Cloud Star continued to strengthen independent research and
development as evidenced by commencement and operation of 20
artificial intelligence demonstration zones, covering Wuhan, Nanjing,
Chongqing, Hangzhou, etc. In financial year 2022, based on its rich
experience in computing power operation, Cloud Star independently
developed the Rightcloud computing power network scheduling
platform to realize the scheduling and coordination of multi-place and
heterogeneous computing resources (Al, HPC, cloud, etc.), therefore
assisting the implementation of the “Eastern Data for Western
Computing” project. The platform received the compatibility test
certification for development capability of Huawei Cloud by the end
of 2022, and obtained the HUWEI COMPATIBLE certificate and the
right to use the certification logo. With advanced technology and high-
quality service, Cloud Star has won many honors such as “Huawei
Cloud Excellent Software Partner Award” in 2022, which enabled itself
to be the industry benchmark.
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2. Consumer electronic business grew against

the trend, and diversified and enriched
technological life of users

In light of the potential economic slowdown or recession around the
world, coupled with the weakening product innovation, prices of raw
materials have generally rose, while many consumers tended to be
cautious when choosing consumer products. Therefore, the consumer
electronic market continued to shrink as a whole in 2022. Benefited
from the advanced layout of cutting-edge technology fields such as Al,
VR, AR, etc., the Group has effectively resolved its cyclical difficulties
and achieved growth against the trend in consumer electronic
business.

During the reporting period, the Group was actively engaged in
metaverse, continued to develop new consuming businesses
and established various new product lines. The Group reached
new cooperation with brands such as iFLYTEK, Pico, Dyson and
TmallGenie, and signed up 18 new consumer electronic product lines.
Through the innovative “multi-product, multi-model and multi-scenario”
business model, the Group has broken through industry bottleneck
and burst with vitality.

As the only company in the industry acting as the general agency
for three major games, namely Sony PlayStation, Microsoft Xbox
and Nintendo Switch, the Group boasts a clear development plan,
extensive product lines and stable channels, which provide protection
for all-round and multi-disciplinary enrichment of public life and present
a huge space and potential for the growth of VSTECS’s consumer
electronics business in the future.

.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERETE (B)

Advanced the development of enterprise
systems business to facilitate the construction
of digital China

According to the Plan for the Overall Layout of China’s Digital
Development issued by the Communist Party of China Central
Committee and the State Council, building a digital China is important
for the advancement of Chinese modernization in the digital era, and
provides solid support for the development of new advantages in
the country’s competitiveness. To strengthen the key capabilities for
digital China, efforts shall be made to build a self-sustaining and self-
reliant digital technology innovation system and consolidate a credible
and controllable digital security protection. Therefore, it is imperative
to promote technology innovation in China and push forward the
construction of an autonomous and controllable ecology for science
and technology.

Adhering to the corporate philosophy of “Leading Digital Asia”, the
Group has advanced the development of its enterprise systems
business to support Chinese brands in building a strong ecosystem in
China while escorting the internationalization of Chinese enterprises.
As an important partner of Huawei, HC3, Sugon, Qi An Xin and
Venustech in the Chinese market, the Group has worked with Huawei,
Lenovo, Alibaba Cloud, OPPO and other domestic brands to develop
the Southeast Asian market. With more cooperation opportunities
brought by our good reputation in the industry, VSTECS has reported
a year-over-year increase in partnership with domestic brands, driving
a growing proportion of domestic brands’ sales performance.

During the reporting period, the Group has won the bid for
government digital projects including the Digital Operation Service
Platform of the Computer Network Information Center, Chinese
Academy of Sciences, and the Computing Power Operation Platform
of the Hangzhou Artificial Intelligence Center, giving full play to the
advantages of enterprise system business, and actively contributing to
the construction of Digital China.

Annual Report 2022
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Strengthen the construction of IT ecosystem
in Southeast Asia and continuously increase
overseas business

Although the digital transformation in Southeast Asia is in its infancy,
there is a significant room for industries such as e-commerce,
gaming, social networking, and digital payment to grow. VSTECS has
established branches in Thailand, Singapore, Indonesia, Philippines,
Malaysia, Cambodia, Myanmar and Laos, serving many leading
customers from governments, finance and education industries
in Southeast Asia. In the financial year 2022, Southeast Asia’s
performance has achieved a 5% countertrend growth. The Group has
provided services for various projects, including Smart Network Project
of Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand, AISG Project Solution
of National University of Singapore, Maybank Hybrid Cloud Platform
Project in Malaysia, Caloocan Government Enterprise Security Project
in Philippines, and National Police Agency Hyper-Converged Storage
Private Cloud Project in Indonesia.

VSTECS has been deeply engaged in Southeast Asia for many years
and has maintained good cooperation with its partners. The Group
won the Best Distributor in Southeast Asia in 2022 by Ruark Audio,
the Best Distributor in 2022 by Cisco (Thailand), the Best Growing
Distributor and the Best SMB Distributor in Consumer Business by
Lenovo (Indonesia).

In the long run, the market in Southeast Asia has great potential
for growth. Therefore, the Group will continue to strengthen the IT
ecological construction in Southeast Asia, fully seize the opportunity of
economic recovery, tap the demand for IT infrastructure construction
in Southeast Asia, and accumulate strength for the Group’s another
rapid growth.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERETE (B)

Only when it is difficult can it show courage; only when it is honed can MERH FEBREHER KT
it be achieved. In 2022, we witnessed the diligence and efforts of all Epe2022F - HKMEBTELENR
VSTECS employees, and the progress and growth of the Group. In PREINYDEZH HAETEE
2023, standing at a new starting point of development, all VSTECS B £ B R » 20234F U £ T A 3
employees will work together to set sail, and continue to create value, REH BHCEAEZEBEISE IR
repay the society, and promote the high-quality development of both oW ER - LUEXNEENEE-
the industry and itself with greater resilience and confidence and in a WHEEH HEEEE BRtg-
down-to-earth way. HETENESSEE28E -

Li Jialin FERITHAEH

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer = EM

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023 BB T =F=ZA=+=H
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIC DIRECTION
RERARKBLR

The Group is a leading Information, Communication and Technology (“ICT”)
products and services provider, serving a wide regional customer base.
The Group has over 80 offices in nine countries namely China, Thailand,
Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia, Philippines, Cambodia, Myanmar and
Laos. The three main businesses are Enterprise Systems, Consumer
Electronics and Cloud Computing. The Enterprise Systems segment
designs, installs and implements IT infrastructure for companies, while the
Consumer Electronics segment and the Cloud Computing Segment provide
various finished IT products and cloud computing solutions and services
to customers. Leading IT vendors such as Huawei, Alibaba, Tencent, HP,
Apple, Seagate, AMD, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft,
Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more use the Group’s network of over
50,000 channel partners in the region to distribute their products.

As the leading distributor of ICT products in the region, we have
established, through our reseller channel, a broad customer base ranging
from individuals, small and medium enterprises to large corporations and
government entities who have been serviced by our regional resellers over
the past 31 years.

Our infrastructure is built on a fully integrated Enterprise Resource Planning
system to manage our sales, distribution, finance and logistic operations to
provide efficient customer services with speed and reliability.

We have an extensive distribution network of over 50,000 resellers,
comprising retailers, system integrators and corporate dealers. These
resellers not only market a wide range of products but they also provide
support and repair services to the end-users.

The Group creates sustainable value for shareholders through the following
strategies:

° Focus on our key markets in China and South East Asia

° Focus on our extensive list of vendors to expand our product portfolio
° Focus on strengthening our working capital and financial management
° Focus on improving operating efficiencies and cost management
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEHEEBAWR S

Business Review

The Group has recorded a considerable revenue this year. The Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 was HK$77,323,994,000
(2021: HK$78,335,446,000). Gross profit for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to HK$3,377,924,000 (2021: HK$3,639,069,000).
Operating profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted
to HK$1,328,268,000 (2021: HK$1,661,212,000). Net profit for the
year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to HK$823,071,000 (2021:
HK$1,314,026,000). Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2022 was HK58.15 cents (2021: HK92.74 cents) per share.

During the year, revenue from the enterprise systems segment decrease
by 5.4% to HK$41,357,772,000, contributing 53.5% of the total Group
revenue. Revenue from the consumer electronics segment increased
by 2.5% to HK$33,075,400,000, contributing 42.8% of the total Group
revenue. Revenue from the cloud computing segment increased by 23.4%
to HK$2,890,822,000, contributing 3.7% of the total Group revenue.

Geographically, both North Asia and South East Asia performed steadily in
the year ended 31 December 2022. During the year, revenue generated in
North Asia slightly decreased by 3% to HK$60,089,079,000, contributing
approximately 78% of the total Group revenue. Revenue from South East
Asia increased by 5% to HK$17,234,915,000, contributing approximately
22% of the total Group revenue. The Group has continuously aimed to
widen our product range in order to provide more choices to our customers.
Our extensive and diversified product lines now include Huawei, Alibaba,
Tencent, HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer,
Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some which are specific to the Group or the industries in which
the Group operates as well as others that are common to most if not all
other businesses. The directors have established a policy to ensure that
significant risks which may adversely affect the Group’s performance and
ability to deliver on its strategies, as well as those which may present
positive opportunities, are identified, reported, monitored, and managed on
a continuous basis.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are
shown in note 3 to the financial statements.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors and management are aware, the Group has complied
in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group. During the
year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE DN (&)

Relationships with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
Regular and continuous communication with our suppliers, customers and
other stakeholders are carried out through regular meetings, conferences,
and promotional events.

Environmental, Social and Corporate Responsibility

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintain the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable development of
its business. The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. It has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.

Prospects

Our extensive portfolio of products and network will enable us to continue
to drive growth for the Group. We will continue to execute strategies to
increase market shares as well as the range of products and services
offered. This will enable the Group to continue to focus on growth in all
business segments.
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Our strategy remains to constantly redefine our value proposition as a trusted
partner with strong relationships and deep understanding of our customers’
needs. Strategically we will continue to expand in China and South East
Asia. We will continue to work actively to improve internal operational and
financial efficiencies to improve margins. We will also continue to expand our
business into consumer electronics and cloud computing.

With our experienced and dedicated management team, we are confident
that we will be able to continue to grow our business.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and bank balances were
approximately HK$3,828,930,000 (2021: approximately HK$3,247,498,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$8,422,683,000 (2021: approximately HK$6,278,318,000).
The net debt to total asset ratio, calculated as borrowings less cash and
bank balances divided by total assets, was 0.13 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: 0.09).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded total current assets
of approximately HK$32,641,709,000 (2021: approximately
HK$29,955,056,000) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$25,505,265,000 (2021: approximately HK$22,529,574,000). The current
ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the total current assets by the total
current liabilities, was approximately 1.28 times as at 31 December 2022
(2021: approximately 1.33 times).

The Group recorded a slight decrease in shareholders’ funds from
approximately HK$7,911,430,000 as at 31 December 2021 to approximately
HK$7,657,778,000 as at 31 December 2022,
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE DN (&)

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank balances of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand
baht and Indonesian rupiah.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand baht and
Indonesian rupiah.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had certain financial assets pledged for
financial liabilities, deposits secured for issuance for and a building pledged
against secured mortgage loan as set out in notes 3.4, 13 and 21 to the
financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Employees

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 4,487 (2021: 4,199) full time
employees.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry practice,
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well as individual
performance. Other benefits include medical, annual leave and retirement
schemes. The net total remuneration paid for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to approximately HK$1,078,395,000 (2021: approximately
HK$1,103,028,000). The Group also provides training courses or seminars
to its staff.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY
EERAFIRERE

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 61, is one of the founders of
the Group and is the Company’s Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director. Mr.
Li is also the director of VSTECS (HK) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. He is responsible for the
overall management and strategic positioning of the
Group. Mr. Li graduated from Tsinghua University
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with
a Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in 1983 and a
Master Degree in Management Engineering in 1986.

Mr. Li is the father of Mr. Li Yue, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 51, is an
Executive Director and the Group Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. Mr. Ong is also the
director of VSTECS (HK) Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company. He is responsible for the overall
financial management of the Group. Mr. Ong holds
a Bachelor Degree in Economics from University
College London and a Master Degree in Analysis,
Design & Management of Information Systems
from the London School of Economics and Political
Science. Mr. Ong is a fellow of the Institute of

Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

S
7

Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. LI Yue, aged 34, appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in May 2016. Mr. Li joined
the Company in 2012. Mr. Li is responsible for
investments and fund management of the Group.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from
the University of Chicago in the United States of
America. Mr. Li is also a CFA charterholder. He is
a member of the CFA Institute and the Hong Kong
Society of Financial Analysts. Mr. Li is the son of Mr.
Li Jialin, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 53, is an Executive
Director of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Electrical Engineering from the University
of Wisconsin-Madison in the United States of
America. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience
in personal computer and semiconductor industry.
Mr. Chan is currently the Senior Vice President —
Product Management of VSTECS (HK) Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company in 2005, Mr. Chan served as the
distribution director of Advanced Micro Devices and was in charge of the
distribution business in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. GU Sanjun, aged 52, appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in June 2021.
Mr. Gu has extensive experience in the field of

\ Information Technology and has accumulated 14

p years experience of operation in the Group. Mr. Gu

N had served as the general manager of the software

department of the Group from 2000 to 2008 and

¥ subsequently rejoined the Group in 2016. Mr. Gu

Y currently is the chief executive officer in the Greater

China Region of the Group and is responsible for the

overall business development and achieving the Company’s strategic goal

in the PRC. Prior to that, Mr. Gu had served in different large enterprises in

China such as Guangzhou Suntek Technology ( &M #1 AHT) , Ingram

Micro International (China) (228 EIR (R ) ) and Founder Group (1t X5

IE£E) . Mr. Gu graduated from the Beijing University of Technology in the
PRC with a Bachelor Degree in Applied Mathematics.

s
G
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Dongjie, aged 49, appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company in January
2023. Mr. Zhang graduated from Xiamen University
in the PRC with a Master degree in Economics in
2005. Mr. Zhang is currently the deputy general
manager of Shenzhen Eternal Asia Supply Chain
Management Ltd. (& 3l T 16 T5 i 4% JE 88 iR {n

[R A A)) (“Shenzhen Eternal Asia”), a joint stock
company established in the PRC with limited liability
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Shenzhen Eternal Asia is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhang is also a non-executive
director of Trigiant Group Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHEUNG Wing Lee lIsaiah, aged 55,
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company in March 2021. Mr. Cheung graduated
from the Queen’s University in Kingston, Canada
with a Bachelor of Science degree with honours
in Computer Engineering in 1990. He has over
30 years of extensive experience in the field of
Information Technology. Mr. Cheung joined Microsoft
as the Vice President of Consumer and Device
Sales Group in the Greater China Region from
2011 to 2019. Prior to joining Microsoft, Mr. Cheung had served at various
positions at Hewlett-Packard (“HP”), including the Vice President of the
Personal Systems Group in HP China, General Manager of Solution Partners
Organization (SPO) China and Director of Mobile Business from 1995 to
2011,
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERAFINEERE (&)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Wei, aged 68, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Li was educated in the PRC, Germany
and Australia. He has over 25 years of experience
in establishing and operating businesses in Asia,
particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li has
previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li
is also an independent non-executive director of

Transtech Optelecom Science Holdings Limited and
Qianhai Health Holdings Limited, the shares of both companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange. He also serves as the Chairman of Remuneration
Committee and members of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company.

Mr. LAM Hin Chi, aged 59, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in June 2014. Mr. Lam graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional
Diploma in Management Accountancy and a
Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of experience in finance, auditing

and accounting. He also serves as the Chairman of Audit Committee and
members of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company.
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Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 67, appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in May 2016. Mr. Wang graduated from
Peking University with Ph.D. degree in economics.
He is currently the vice chairman of China Trustee
Association, council member of China Wealth
Management 50 Forum (CWM50) and vice chairman
of the academic committee of CWM50.

From 1985 to 1990, Mr. Wang joined the National Economic System
Reform Committee (NESRC) as director of the Research Office, later he
was promoted to be department director. From 1990 to 1994, he acted
as deputy director, executive deputy director of Beijing New-Tech Industry
Development Zone. From 1994 to 1998, he was appointed to many
important positions, such as director, deputy general manager of Hong Kong
Jing-Tai Industrial (Group) Company Limited, general manager and chairman
of board of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Finance Company Limited, board director
and president of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Securities Company Limited, and
the board chairman of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Industry Investment Company
Limited. Mr. Wang was also the executive director and vice president of
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited. From 1998 to present, Mr. Wang acts
as president and vice chairman of Beijing International Trust and Investment
Corporation Limited which is now transformed to Beijing International Trust
Co. Ltd.

Mr. Wang has a long time dedication to economic research and financial
enterprise management, so he accumulates a rich and sound experience
in finance, trusts, securities and investment funds and enjoys a good
reputation in those areas. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in many
different industries and areas, such as variety of investments, merging
and acquisition, debt issuances, restructure, and IPO etc. Mr. Wang also
serves as the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERAFINEERE (&)

Mr. LI Yi, aged 48, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in
September 2021. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor Degree in
Economics. He has been the first batch of traders
who have the qualifications of first-level traders in
national carbon emission trading market in the PRC.
He currently is a director and chief researcher of the

% Green Digital Development Research Center of the
% Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences. He also has

- part-time roles as distinguished researcher of the
National Governance Research Institute of Tsinghua University, a member
of the Information and Communication Economics Expert Committee of
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the PRC, and the
lecture professor of the Graduate School of the Shanghai Academy of Social
Sciences. He was also awarded as 2010 Top Ten New Talents in information

technology industry in China.

Mr. Li also acted as an independent non-executive director in several listed
companies in the PRC, including New Guomai Digital Culture Co., Ltd. at
the Shanghai Stock Exchange from 2014 to 2020, Transfar Zhilian Co.,
Ltd. at the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from 2015 to 2020 and Huizhou
Speed Wireless Technology Co., Ltd. at the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
from 2016 to 2019. Mr. Li also serves as the members of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Company Secretary

Ms. YUE Cheuk Ying, aged 42, appointed as the
company secretary of the Company in September
2011 and is responsible for the secretarial matters of
the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours)
in Public and Social Administration and a Master of
Science in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong.
She is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She joined the
Group in 2009.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRE HMERELHSE

The Group is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (“ESG Report” or the “Report”) for the year ended 31 December
2022. The ESG Report is to highlight the Group’s approaches and strategies
in pursuit of sustainable development during the period from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Year” or the “Reporting Period”). The
Group would also like to take this opportunity to thanks all stakeholders who
have contributed to this sustainability journey with us and present the ESG
performance to all our stakeholders.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This ESG Report has been prepared according to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Reporting Guide”) as
set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules from the Stock Exchange.
The Report covers the overall performance, policies and practices of the
Group’s business and operations in terms of its environmental and social
responsibilities. The Report is based on the four reporting principles of
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency. To serve the best interest
of our readers, we conducted a materiality assessment through the help with
our stakeholders to select the key ESG issues concerning with our business
operation, which are covered in the later part. This ESG Report mainly
focuses on the aspects that have identified as material and relevant to the
Group’s business and its key stakeholders.

We mentioned the social KPIs which related to the performance of the
Group in employment, labour standards, supply chain management, training
activities, community investment, etc. We computed the environmental key
performance indicators (‘KPIs”) based on our emission and waste produced
in our operation process and also the daily activities in the office, referring
from the ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules and the standards of Greenhouse Gas Protocol, which makes our
ESG performance measurable, in terms of carbon emission, resource usage,
waste generation and so on.

Moreover, the Report aims to provide the readers with a comprehensive
and objective view of our ESG management efficacy, the Group therefore, is
committed to revealing statistics and numbers to the best of our knowledge.

For convenience, an index is available in the last chapter of the Report for
the readers, regarding the locations of KPIs within the Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report mainly focuses on the aspects that have identified as
material and relevant to the Group’s business and its key stakeholders for
the Reporting Period. These cover our three main operation segments,
including the Enterprise Systems segment, the Consumer Electronics
segment and the Cloud Computing segment.

ESG GOVERNANCE

To lead the company to become a socially and environmentally responsible
company, a solid ESG governance structure is essential. The Board
acknowledges its role in identifying the ESG risks and opportunities in the
Group and it also has been involved in the determination of the major ESG
strategies and planning of the ESG related goals. The Group has always
incorporated considerations of the environmental, social and governance
aspects into our operation to fulfill our commitment of creating sustainable
value for stakeholders and being a good corporate citizen. We aim to make
positive impacts on our environment and community, while upholding our
philosophy that sustainable development is rooted in our core business
practices, our relationship with stakeholders, as well as our environmental
performances. The different sections in our Report will reveal our
management approaches in environmental and social aspects accordingly.

The Board has diversified membership, with a broader range of members
from various backgrounds. In terms of age demographics, although 46% of
our members are within the 51-60 age range, we have seen there are 27%
of our members are below 50 years old.

Age Distribution of Board
EES2FROM

31-40
31-408%
9%

61 or above
615 E
27%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BOARD’S ESG RESPONSIBILITY

The Board acknowledges the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategies and reporting and for evaluating and determining the Group’s
ESG related risks. The Board also has the responsibility to develop the
environmental goals to encourage the Group to have a better performance
in the future. ESG performance is measured, reviewed and reported to the
management regularly for continuous improvement.

The Board collectively responsible for the overall development and review of
the ESG matters. Whenever ESG issues arise, they will be put to the Board
for further discussion. We will also seek professional advice from third party
whenever necessary.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Taking the opinions of the stakeholders seriously is the direction of the
Group. The Group believes that understanding the views of its stakeholders
lays a solid foundation for the long-term growth and success of the Group,
S0 we maintain an open and honest relationship with our stakeholders.

As a leading distributor of Information, Communication and Technology
(“ICT”) products in Asia, we strive to maximize the long-term benefits of all
our stakeholders by continuously communicating with them and effectively
balancing their respective expectations and needs in order to achieve
sustainable development of the Company. Our key stakeholders include the
shareholders, employees, clients, suppliers, government, environment and
community, etc.

We use different channels to gather the opinions from various stakeholders,
we hold regular meetings with our stakeholders and have different tailor
different communication channels for each stakeholder, for example, we will
conduct site visit to our suppliers, we have a service hotline for our clients
and we hold press conferences for our investors. Through the different
channels, we collect their opinions and give our responses.

Through the communication with our employees, the Group realised that
our employees focus on the welfare, career path, training provided to them
and a healthy working environment. The Group take this into consideration
and provided a healthy working environment, a competitive remuneration
package and also the discretionary bonus by reference to individual and
Group’s performance, in response to their opinions. The Group also organize
social gathering regularly to increase their sense of belongings. Different
from our employees, our management team focuses on the performance of
the company, and whether the company’s goals and strategies have been
achieved. This is more or less similar to the Group concerns and the Group
will make sure that the goals and strategies set by the management are duly
communicated to all the staff which can enhance the achievement of the
goals.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Our clients are concerned about the product and services quality and safety
as well as the customer relationships and privacy protection. In response,
we provide a high quality of product and service, in additionally we have a
special team to provide after-sales services to them.

The Group also pays attention to our relationship with suppliers. Suppliers of
different brands are handled by a designated project management team to
ensure a close relationship with each supplier of integrity and fair dealing.

Our investors concerned about the business development and prospect
of the Group and also the returns on investment, we clearly understand
their concerns. In response to the concerns of our investors, our Group
management will have regular meetings with them and we will also engage
professional parties to explore potential investors in the benefit to the Group.

To make sure the group has complied with all the laws and regulations, we
will review and update the latest government and regulatory body’s policies
regularly to respond to the Government — one of our stakeholders’ concerns,
that is to comply with the laws and regulations. We think this is beneficial to
the Group and we are happy to do so.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Group has obtained the views of our key
stakeholders include the shareholders, employees, clients, suppliers, etc.
on the Group’s material issues and sustainability strategy. After a series of
managerial-level meetings and the Board’s discussion, a several number of
issues have been identified, the Group has assessed those important ESG
topics and produced the following materiality matrix to clarify the ESG issues
that concern our business most.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Low Impact to External Stakeholders High

Details of the numbers can be found in the table below:

B/ 48R
/-

MBI E VS

15

Materiality - Environmental

EEMH-RE
7 Risks brought by
climate issues
RIRREE R R
[
5 Packaging material

consumption 4 Water
BEMELEFE consumption

® ® IKEFE

6 Significant impacts ®

on the environment
HIRBENFTEZE

{
2 Sewage and waste

&K 2 Y]
Low Impact to Internal Stakeholders
& HABEFDENTZE

Environmental

o
1 Air pollutant and
carbon emission

e SR R B BE L
3 Energy and
electricity
consumption
BERKRENEFE
]
High
—'%

BFrFBLATX:

BB
1 Air pollutant and carbon emission
[E% R M B BE AR
2 Sewage and waste
[EEIK K2 EE W)
3 Energy and electricity consumption
BEIR B B
4 Water consumption
KB
5 Packaging material consumption
BEMEERE
6 Significant impacts on the environment, such as noise, odour, pollution, ecological imbalance, species extinction and
resource depletion
HIRENETEZE MRS BR 5 ERXE MEREKRERLES
7 Risks brought by climate issues, such as physical risk (extreme weather events and rise of temperature) and transition

risk (policy, legal and market risk

RIRFEER RO ER YR ER (RiHRRENRRRETT) FBEERR (B R RTHER)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE - HERERRS (E)

Materiality — Social
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Details of the numbers can be found in the table below: HFTFBEL2RTX:
Social
e
8 Compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare
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9 Employees’ health and workplace safety
EEMREMITESRZE
10 Improvement in job skills and development opportunities
RAIERERERKS
11 Stability and sustainability of supply chain
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12 Product market demand and innovation*
Emr 5 E K el F
13 Contribution to society, such as donation, care, conservation and education
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Materiality - Governance
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Details of the numbers can be found in the table below: FFHEB2RTX:
Governance
&R
14 Preventing child labour and forced labour

TEPE T Roah| 4T
15 Supply chain environmental risk management
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16 Product quality and safety*

EmEERer”
17 Customer relation and protection

BEFRMERRE
18 Intellectual property rights*

AR E R
19 Behaviours such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, and the mechanisms and training activities to

prevent such behaviours*
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* The most important topics to the Group * AEBEREERNZER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

As illustrated above, the ESG topics of highest priority to the Group are
Product Quality and Safety, Product Market Demand and Innovation,
Intellectual Property Rights and Corruption Behaviour with the Prevention
Policy.

Because of our business nature, our internal and external stakeholders are
focused more on the social and governance issues than the environmental
issues that are less related to our business nature. For the social sector,
our stakeholders focus on the Product Market Demand and Innovation, as
an IT trading company, we also care about the innovation and demand of
our product. We have cooperated with lots of well-established and well-
known suppliers that provide us with high quality products, and believe that
the demand for IT products will be stable. In addition, we keep discussing
with our suppliers about the new idea of the IT products such that they can
provide trendy products to our customers.

For the governance sector, our stakeholders focused on the Product’s
Quality and Safety and the Intellectual Property Rights. These factors are
very important to the operation of the Group. The Group has policy and
regulation on monitoring the safety of the product. Once we have discovered
the safety and quality problems, we will inform the suppliers immediately and
find a solution to solve the problems by returning the products or renewing
the products. We also take the Intellectual Property Rights issue as a very
serious matter, as innovation and ideas are key inputs of IT products. We
have strict regulations on supervision of the product that is not yet on the
market.

Apart from the product-related sector, Corruption Prevention is also a topic
that our stakeholders think is an important issue and the Board has the
same idea as our stakeholders. In view of this, the Group has a stringent
Code of Conduct that requires the employees and our business partners
to follow strictly. Moreover, all employees are also required to attend anti-
corruption training every year to remind them of the importance of integrity.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

ESG STRATEGIES

As the Group is a leading distributor of ICT products, channel development
and integrated service providers of technology solutions in the Asia Pacific
region. Compared with the manufacturing-based business, we are mainly
engaged in the development of technologies with fewer environmental
concerns. But we still hope to participate in environmental protection
activities and also fulfil corporate social responsibility. We will put more
energy into social development, including employment and development
policies, supplier selection, safety and health issues, product responsibility,
etc.

We understand the importance of its impact on sustainable environmental
development. We will continue to encourage and ensure the efficient use
of resources in our operation process to save energy and reduce GHG
emission as much as possible. We will keep putting effort in protecting the
environment and we are planning to work with our suppliers on handling the
electronic wastes in a more proper way. Based on the characteristics of the
industry, we have established a three-step environmental goal. At the same
time, we closely monitor environmental risks to ensure that relevant risks are
under control.

Environmental Targets
RIEER

Target 2: Gradually establish a

for Scope 3 GHG emissions.

BHRZ : BPEVHEIRER

RO Ao
Target 1: Achieve a gradual BHENTER

reduction in GHG Emissions (Per
Employee) of Scope 2 year by year.

BfE— : BB RLEBE2NE R
ETREREHN

Target 1: Achieve a gradual reduction in GHG Emissions (Per Employee)
of Scope 2 year by year. This is a quantitative target. We will implement
the relevant target in various departments and branch structures of the
organization, especially in the use of electricity, to ensure the achievement of
the target.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Target 2: Gradually establish a monitoring and management system for
Scope 3 GHG emissions. We have noticed that GHG Emissions of Scope
3 which is have gradually received attention from regulatory agencies and
industry organizations. GHG Emissions of Scope 3 are the indirect emissions
outside of scope 2 emissions that occur in the value chain of the company
We will closely monitor policy changes and guard against the risks they
may pose to the company. At the same time, based on the principle of
prevention, we will accelerate the establishment of monitoring systems for
Scope 3 GHG emissions.

Target 3: Based on the Group’s services, gradually promote environmental
upgrading of industries. As a listed company, we are well aware of the
importance of social responsibility. As an ICT services company, we are
deep aware of our product and services play an important role in promoting
environmental development. Base on Target 1 and Target 2, we will take
actions and provide solutions contributes to the environmental upgrading of
upstream and downstream companies.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group believes that building a harmonious and prosperous community
atmosphere can achieve a win-win situation and promote long-term
corporate benefit. By focusing on areas such as employment and labour
practices, operational procedures, and social engagement, we aim to
establish a mutually beneficial connection with both our internal and external
stakeholders.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Product Quality and Safety

To provide high quality of products and services to our customers, the Group
carefully selects our suppliers with good reputation. Before introducing
products to customers, the Group will examine the specifications of each
product supplied by the vendors to ensure that they meet the necessary
standards and meet the expectations of the customers.

Being a comprehensive distributor, our aim is not only to offer superior
quality products to our customers but also to provide an array of value-
added services to both our suppliers and customers. We have a product
return and exchange policy for our customers, and if any quality-related
complaints arise, we report and provide feedback to our suppliers for their
review and improvement.

During the Reporting Period, no products were subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons, nor any complaints received.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Privacy and Data Protection

In addition, the Group strives to protect personal data and privacy of every
customer. All the employees are obligated to retain in highly confidential any
information obtained in connection with their employment, such as client
information and supplier information.

We strictly confine the usage of the collected information for purposes
we specified in our contracts, and we make sure to use such information
responsibly. We require each and every employee to follow the guidance
related to the privacy and data protection. Employees who have access to
or are in control of such information have the full responsibility to protect the
information from unauthorised disclosure or use.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group also pays high attention in protecting the interest of intellectual
property rights. When the Group engages a supplier to sell its products,
we will liaise with the supplier on the terms and conditions on the sale of
the products and a distributor agreement will be signed by both parties to
ensure that the Group has the right and authority to sell the products on
behalf of the suppliers.

In addition, the Group pays close attention to infringements in the market
to prevent any infringements (e.g., counterfeiting of trademarks), this is to
prevent and protect the Groups and the others from getting into troubles.

Customer Opinion and Complaints

The Group values the feedback of our customers as it guides us towards
improvement. Additionally, we take customer complaints very seriously and
thoroughly investigate them to report to our management team. Our goal is
to offer our customers a great experience.

During the Reporting Period, no complaints were received and we complied
with all relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact to us,
including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, and noted
no incident of information leakage reported during the Reporting Period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Suppliers are one of the key stakeholders to the Group who cannot be
independent of production materials. Hence, we value our relationship with
suppliers and are actively developing a sustainable supply chain that meets
the Group’s ethical, environmental, health and safety standards.

As a leading ICT products distributor, supply chain management forms a
very essential part in the Group. We have over 300 product suppliers from
all around the world, including China, Singapore, Thailand, Indonesia, etc.
Below are the details of the supplier’s distribution:

No. of suppliers

HEBMHE

Singapore ¥ 03
12%

Thailand ZE
12%

Indonesia ElfE
10%

HK &8
4%

The Group has established a well-functioning supply chain management
system that enhances the collaboration among suppliers, distributors,
and retailers, ensuring that our customers receive top-notch products
and services. To optimize the efficiency and efficacy of our supply chain
management, each brand of supplier is assigned to a designated project
manager who is responsible for overseeing their performance and ensuring
seamless delivery of products to all parties involved. Additionally, our team
regularly meets with our suppliers to ensure smooth operations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Most of our top suppliers are well-established and well-known brands
such as Huawei, HP, Seagate, Western Digital, Dell, Lenovo, and Apple to
name a few. The majority of our suppliers are governed by the laws and
regulations in the U.S. and other countries and they are expected to comply
with relevant laws and regulations in relation to safety and environmental
management standards so that their products are up to standard. The
Group emphasises the relationship and communications with the suppliers
to promote sustainable development.

We also have a comprehensive process in selecting and engaging suppliers
with integrity and fair treatment. We always take into consideration such
as supplier qualification, past portfolio, product quality, recall policy, market
conditions and demands, etc. The Group communicates with the suppliers
and distributors regularly to maintain a good relationship with them and
review and monitor the performance of the suppliers and provide feedback
to them from time to time.

Besides the above selection criteria mentioned, the ethical performance and
their participation in corporate social responsibility are also our concerns.
We have to keep monitoring their performance and corporate social
responsibility so that to make sure that our suppliers are up to their social
standards. We hope to cooperate with the suppliers who have the same
vision as us.

The Group is highly committed to promoting environmentally-friendly
procurement practices. As suppliers play a vital role in our business by
directly affecting the quality, cost, and delivery time of our products and
services, we prioritize their selection and performance evaluation processes.

Traditionally, supplier selection processes have focused on quality, cost,
and lead time. However, with the growing importance of environmental
concerns, our Group has included environmental criteria in our supplier
selection process. We expect our suppliers to not only comply with
environmental regulations but also engage in efficient, green product design
and sustainable development.

Therefore, our Group conducts extensive background checks and
performance evaluations in our green supplier selection process, overseen
by our designated product management team. They engage with suppliers
on their environmental policies and compare them with other suppliers. Most
of our suppliers are reputable international brands, and we continuously
monitor their green procurement performance and policies. Furthermore,
some of our board members sit on the Environmental, Social and
Governance committee of our major suppliers to monitor and share views
on different areas.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Our Board is responsible for the overall risk management of our group and
different area of risks management are delegated to designated senior
management team. Our product management team is responsible for the
group supply risk management. We manage procurement risks from four
aspects.
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Measures for Management Risks in Supply Chain
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Identify internal and external risks
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Develop a supply chain risk
management plan for handling risks
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B |dentify internal and external risks. Understanding the sources and
impact of procurement risks, conducting risk assessment and analysis,
and determining potential consequences.

| Develop a supply chain risk management plan for handling risks. We
have developed a supply chain risk management plan which help
organizations proactively identify and mitigate potential risks, ensure
continuity of operations, and protect against unforeseen disruptions
to the supply chain., including risk identification, risk assessment, risk
mitigation, risk monitoring, risk response and so on.

B Monitor risks closely. We continuously monitor the supply chain
for potential risks and evaluate the effectiveness of risk mitigation
strategies.

] Perform regular reviews. By conducting regular reviews of the supply
chain management process, we can identify areas for improvement
and ensure that they are delivering value to customers while managing
risks effectively.

Perform regular reviews
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity throughout its
operations and corrupt practices and bribery are strictly intolerable. The
Group complies strictly with the relevant laws and regulations in relation to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. There are anti-corruption and
anti-bribery guidelines provided to all the employees. During the year under
review, the Group did not have any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations.

The Group has a Compliance Department to monitor the compliance issue
and to ensure that all employees are aware of the importance of integrity
and honesty as the Group’s core value. The Group has stringent Code of
Conduct that requires the employees and our business partners to follow
strictly. There are two aspects in the Group’s Code of Conduct. One is
related to employees. All newly joined employees are required to sign
the Employee’s Handbook and an Integrity Declaration and attend anti-
corruption training. All employees are also required to attend anti-corruption
training every year to remind them on the importance of integrity. As for
our business partners, such as suppliers, terms and conditions related to
anticorruption are included in all the purchasing and sale agreements to
ensure both parties are fully aware of their responsibilities.
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Anti-corruption Training Content

REFEZIAET

n Law and Regulations ;& B i&#

Local Law and Regulations & it 3512 & AR
International Laws and Regulations BIFEZE N AR

E Enforcement Standards under Compliance & {TiR#E

Code of Conduct for Individuals: Commitment to Integrity and Ethics; Employee’s Handbook {BLA{T A% : B<FiiEEE  BEEFM
Compliance Requirements with Customers: Anti-Bribery Clause Z2F &REXR : REBHEIER

Compliance Requirements in Procurement: Anti-Bribery Clause HEE&HEEK :

Whistle-blowing Channels 23R 3&i&
Confidentiality of whistle-blowing %ﬁ# REZME

The Group also has whistle-blowing policy which provides channels for
employees to report any malpractice, misconduct or illegal action. All the
information collected and received will be kept confidential and the Group’s
internal audit department will conduct internal investigation and report to
senior management.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group, its directors and employees were
not involved in any legal cases concerning corrupt practices. We did not
aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in
our operating areas, including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance of Hong Kong, that had a notable impact on the Group relating to
health and safety in relation to products and services provided.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group regards talents as one of its core competencies and has
optimized the use of human resources through a dedicated recruitment
process and appraisal system.

The Group believes that employees are the most important and valuable
assets contributing to the key to success and sustainable growth of the
Company as a whole. The Group strictly complies with all the relevant
labour laws and regulations under respective jurisdictions. The Group treats
all the employees equally that their employment, remuneration, promotion
or dismissal will not be affected by their social identities such as race,
nationality, gender, religion, age and marital status.

The Group provides a range of attractive remuneration, promotional
opportunities, compensation, and benefits packages to attract and retain
talented employees. Salaries are evaluated annually and adjusted based
on individual performance and market conditions. Additionally, employees
receive discretionary bonuses, share options, and Company shares to
recognize their contributions to the Group, evaluated by both the Group’s
overall performance and individual performance. The Group also offers
other benefits such as medical insurance, paid and maternity leaves, and
retirement schemes to its employees.

At the end of Reporting Period, our Group hired a total of 4,487 employees,
of which are almost full-time employees (4,476). Across our business
portfolio, females accounted for 47% of the total labour. We are glad
to see that the gender gap in the Group is small and we will keep this
phenomenon. Regarding age, most of our employees concentrate in 31-
40, accounting for around 43% of the total number. This is a positive for the
Group as the employees at this age are often experienced and productive.
For staff retainment, we would develop a strategy accordingly.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Gender Distribution of Employee

BT MR M

Female %%
47%
Male 5%
53%

Age Distribution of Employee

BIFRSMH
51-60 61 or above
51-60%% 615 E
3% 1%
41-50
41{?3%% 30 or below
° 30T
36%
31-40
31-40%%
43%

Location Distribution of Employee
BIMES M

Hong Kong &#
2%

Singapore ¥ hn%
4%
Indonesia ElfE
8%
China
Thailand Z=El 71%
15%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

During the period, we saw an 27% of our employees leaving the Group.
Most of them are aged 30 or below and the turnover rate for the age group
is 43%. The Group will closely monitor the situation. The Group also has
policies and plans to retain the talents, for example, to provide them more
training so as to develop their potential and let them feel being valued by the
company. We treasure all employees of our company and hope to give them
a good working atmosphere and experience.

Turnover Rate - Age

TERE—FH
45% 43%
40%
35%
30%
25% 22%
20%
15% 1%
10% 7%
i =
0%
30 orbelow  31-40 41-50 51-60
30FELL T 31-405% 41-505% 51-607%

Our Group has a balanced figure in terms of gender, which is a sign of
gender equality, and the turnover rate by gender is also fairly balanced, with
59% of departing employees being male and 41% female. The turnover
rate was 30% for men and 24% for women. Below are the other Turnover
Statistics presenting in Graph (Turnover Rate Calculation: Employees of
certain category leaving/Total number of employees in the category):
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Turnover Rate - Location
MARE—-HhE

35% 33%
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30% 28% 27%
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Location Distribution of Departing Employees
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During the year under review, the Group did not have any non-compliance R EIBEFEE AN AEBY ETFERIEHE
with the relevant employment laws and regulations. BERRERNEBER -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strongly condemns any form of child and forced labour, as
it violates international labour standards. The Group adheres strictly to
the relevant laws and regulations in the jurisdictions where it operates,
concerning child and forced labour. The Group prohibits the use of child and
forced labour in all its operations. The Group provides equal opportunities
and fair treatment to all employees and job applicants.

To ensure compliance, the Human Resource Department conducts
background checks on all job applicants. Each potential job applicant is
required to complete an employment application form, which the Human
Resource Department reviews to verify the accuracy of the information
provided. The Human Resource Department is responsible for regulating
If any cases
arise that cannot be handled by the Human Resource Department, they are
promptly reported to upper management for further action.

employment and preventing any non-compliant behaviours.

We form a voluntary employment relationship with each of our employees
and working hours exceeding the regulatory limits is not allowed. We also
promote such concepts within the supply chain so as to protect the well-
being of labour of the entire community. We hope to spread out the ideas of
restricting child and force labour. If, unfortunately child labour is found, their
employment will be terminated immediately and remuneration will be made
according to the agreed wages.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not recognize any material
irregularities in the laws and regulations relating to any labour standards.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group gives top priority to occupational health and safety. It recognizes
that having effective occupational health and safety policies is crucial
not just for its employees and the Group, but also for its customers and
other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Group has established a labor safety
and sanitation control system in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in mainland China and Hong Kong.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Workplace safety is extremely important to the Group. The Group is
committed to maintain a safe and healthy working environment and
offer occupational safety training to employees. The Group also provides
guidelines to staff in warehouses in order to raise awareness on occupational
safety and health. For example, warning notice is placed around the
warehouse for reminding the employees the careful operation of electric
reach trucks. During the year under review, the Group did not have any
work-related fatality case or any non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations.

In addition, a professional cleaning company has been hired to sanitize
the office carpet and regularly clean the air conditioning, with extra care
taken during the pandemic. The entire office area is frequently sterilized to
ensure cleanliness. Additionally, apart from providing bottled water, a water
treatment system has been installed to filter and enhance the quality of
drinking water.

During the year under review, the Group did not have any work-related
fatality cases or any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
In the past 3 years, the Group’s operations recorded zero fatalities.

Apart from workplace safety, a healthy lifestyle is promoted to the
employees. The Group organizes annual dinner, Christmas party and
Chinese New Year lunch every year to share the joy and happiness amongst
the employees and enhance their sense of belonging. Also, in order to have
a better work-life balance between the employees, overtime working is not
encouraged unless it is necessary. Employees are encouraged to participate
in other activities such as sports or other interest courses to achieve a
healthy work-life balance.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group treasures talents and encourages employees to grow both
intellectually and professionally.

The Group considers development and training is one of the important
elements contributing the success of the Group. The training programs are
classified into two types on-the-job and internal training to different levels
of staff. The Group has formulated training plans for employees, including
seminars and workshops., internal and external. Employees are also highly
encouraged to attend external training courses and seminars that related
to their job nature to enrich their knowledge in discharging their duties. Our
training covers products knowledge, sales and marketing, operational skills,
workflow management skills, leadership and management skills.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group has organised some training for our
employees, 40% of our employees have joined the training offered by the
Group, with the statistic listed below:
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Gender Distribution of Trained Employee
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Male B4
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Female &%
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Grade Distribution of Trained Employee
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Ordinary Grade
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Among our staff, 41% of female employees and 39% of male employees
attended the training held, the average training hours of every employee 21
hours, respectively. For the grade of trained staff, management have joined
the training course offered with the average 15 hours of training, and the
ordinary staff have training amount to an average of 23 hours of training.

Management Grade
EEEEUNSY: 7
7%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been supporting and
engaging in community and charitable activities in order to achieve a
harmonious and sustainable development between enterprise and the
community.

In this year, COVID-19 continues to have an impact on our social lives.
During the pandemic, we have become more aware of the importance of
social responsibility and are using technology to serve in the fight against the
virus. We are committed to ensuring product and service safety and allowing
technology to contribute to contactless solutions. At the same time, we are
promoting nanotechnology materials with self-disinfecting and virus-resistant
functions, providing environmental safety protection, and effectively blocking
the transmission of various viruses and bacteria through the environment.

During the Reporting Period, the Group attended some charity work and
donations through our offices in different regions. The following are the
details of the community investments made by the Group:
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Region Description HKD
B ik 5
HK 4,400 sets of anti-epidemic kits are provided for the “Dispensing Medicine as a Gift” Campaign 100,000
i 7 [F2 285 3% | (Dispensing Medicine as a Gift)/& 8112 1££4,400E M & S Bl &
Indonesia Donation for Orphanage — Medan — buying supplies, clothes, food 5,000
ENE e BRENZE-RE-EBEAD XU BY
Donation for Down Syndrome Children —Surabaya — food, clothes 5,000
BEERGEERE-IK—BY KXY
Donation for Guardian House for Down Syndrome — Ampera, Jakarta — food, groceries 3,000
BREEERGAELR —HNERML—RY #ME
Donation for School for Retarded Student — Bandung — food, groceries 3,000
BESEELER-BE-RY HE
Donation for children that stay at the Mount Merapi refugee camp — Yogyakarta — food, 5,000

groceries, clothes
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE - HERERRS (E)

Region Description HKD
e Ei:pul BT
Thailand Sponsorship for education (CHICKEN RUN: Enterprise of the future — Innovative 11,000
RH Entrepreneurship Student Project under the operation of Yuthasar Na Nagara Foundation for

Thailand Management Association.)
HEE Y (FHE IR L Yuthasar Na NagarazE & & 8 & FYCHICKEN RUN : &K 2R 1b % — 8l %7
BIZ¥E4IER)

Donation to Opengown Camp of Faculty of Medicine Vajira Hospital, Navamindradhiraj 4,000
University

15 B4 Faculty of Medicine Vajira Hospital, Navamindradhiraj University 5 i &

Kathin Ceremony to preserve a Buddhist tradition of Kathin robe offering to monks after 67,000

Buddhist Lent support building a new Buddha image hall
HEXGRETEHROEERHFENERZINOERES  HEENHERE

Donation to Bowling Charity 2022 of Nayok Wattanakorn Wat Udom Thanee School 7,000
87 F Nayok Wattanakorn Wat Udom Thanee School Z 20224 {3 s Bl 38 2 /& &)
Donation to CU Systems Biology Center, Division of Research Affairs, Faculty of Medicine 218,000

Chulalongkorn University
BRTFRNENAZESRMEEBERCURL AP L5 (CU Systems Biology Center)

Donation to Adult Hematologic Malignancy Fund, Ramathibodi Hospital 210,000
83 T Ramathibodi Hospitalik, A I /& 25 14 & & & & (Adult Hematologic Malignancy Fund)

Donate 1 EV motorcycle (Thomas Brand) to Chulalongkorn University 8,000
) 5 1z [ Th K 22 48 741 8 55 &) B2 £ 55 (Thomas Brand)

Donation to Revenue Department for a Buddhist tradition of Kathin robe offering to monks 2,000
BRTHBER AR MG Mt EMeE 220 HRESR

Donation to Koh Nang Kaew Pattanaram Temple for building chapel 1,000
158 82 Koh Nang Kaew Pattanaram Templef i& /N &

Donation to Wat Tha Pong Buddharam for a Buddhist tradition of Kathin robe offering to monks 2,000
B #Wat Tha Pong Buddharam » AR A& = 4 25 (N 85 22 R (0 R 2UF it

Donation to Wat Sra Samphoe Thong for a Buddhist tradition of Kathin robe offering to monks 3,000

18 BEWat Sra Samphoe Thong @ F 72 [A) 2 1& {1 2= I 85 22 22 B9 2B 47

Singapore SINGAPORE RED CROSS SOCIETY 114,000
s FIMFA+FE
METTA WELFARE ASSOCIATION 14,000
BHEFHE
AMKSS SOCIAL MOVE 57,000

AMKSS SOCIAL MOVE

muExRRERas —=--—Fx 49



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Region Description HKD
HE it 5
China Offices in Beijing, Guangzhou, Shanghai, Shenyang and other places have joined the “Workers’ 3,471,000
M Federation” of the local governments to maximize the benefits for employees

bR M BE BEEEHORAEMAMLFTEAN [ TABSE]  REIHR&EAF

The Union organized a ‘Bring the New Year Home’ member event, with a total of 257 N/A

participants. i A

ITEEB M FEOR] @85 HAB7TAZM-.

Organize a Sweet Women’s Day Event for Union Members, with a total of 125 participants.
RIGKEBMEBHERLZEEE HAF125A2M-

Organize a May Day Celebration to Pay Tribute to Workers for the Union Members, with a total
of 318 participants.

BHA—LBEHEERNED mMIeT ASE £B318A2 M-

Organize a May Day Event to Comfort Frontline Workers for the Union Members”, with a total of
295 participants.

RIGKEBAB A —BM—EIEEES]  HH205A200

Organize a Summer Coolness Giveaway Event for Union Members, with a total of 310
participants.

RIGKBEABEZXREREE HAI0AL2M.

Carry out the “Communist Party Members’ Love Donation” campaign with the theme of
“Dedicated to Common Prosperity and National Rejuvenation, | am a Part of It”
FRIBONREFRERMERER ReHEh—8 ] TEN [HEEEEORE]EY
Organize a Mid-Autumn Festival and National Day Celebration Event for Union Members, with a
total of 327 participants.

RIgKEMABPINSMBIEENES - HH327 A2

Organize a Pandemic Support Event for Frontline Workers for the Union Members, with a total
of 160 participants.

RIGRBAB—GIIEENBRBEXEES H£B160A2MN-

Organize a Study of the 20th Party Congress and Quiz Event for Union Members, with a total of
410 participants.

EBIeKEBEBRN T RBEMABRETE LE410A200-

Organize a Winter Warmth Giveaway Event for Union Members, with a total of 343 participants.
BRI ERELTXREES HBE343A2 -

Organize a Screening of the 20th Party Congress Educational Program for Union Members,
with a total of 100 participants.

EBETIEREMM TN T ABEEHE - HH100A 200
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group will continue supporting the culture of active participation in
community services, encouraging our staff to do good to their surrounding
communities by drawing their attention to diverse social and environmental
issues and providing assistance and supports for the people in need.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

We concern about the environment, while maintaining the business
operation of the Group, we try to minimize our impact to the environment at
the same time spreading out the concept of sustainability development and
protecting the environment. The Group undertakes environmental protection
as part of its corporate responsibilities, and it is fully aware of the importance
of sustainable environmental development in promoting sustainability in its
operations. The Group is committed to implementing different environmental
protection measures to reduce the impacts on the environment. We seek to
response to the sustainability issues across our operations, from sourcing
materials to our office usage.

EMISSIONS

The Group has always emphasized environmental friendliness and reducing
emissions of all kinds. As our business is mainly trading in nature, the
operations of our Group do not have significant impacts on air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. Air and gas emission and non-
hazardous waste generated by the Group is minimal. Due to the nature
of business, the most common air emission and greenhouse gas (GHG)
emission from our daily business activities are mainly generated from
the offices and warehouses consumption of electricity and the usage of
vehicles and paper. The Group does not produce any hazardous waste in its
operations.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, for example, the legislations
relevant to the Prevention of Harmful Effects on the Environment Caused by
Air Pollution, Noise, Vibration and Similar Phenomena.

Air and Greenhouse Gases

As the business nature of the Group is trading ICT products, the trading
operation does not involve the emission of GHG in significant quantities.
Therefore, we are not disclosing this figure. If in the future, our emissions
become larger, we will disclose and inform our stakeholders in a timely
manner.

RE -dERERRSE (&)

AEBERBEBEXRFER2ETRRFEHX
bt EBHEIRIZTELENREMNE I
REFENAMBRHREDRIF REEL
EEHER -

REUWEFEERR

BRBEEIRR -RMEAFASEXHZE
MRAE BERIHRENFE RKHER
AREERARERENER -AKE KR
ERFFREGEEAEN MO LRSI R
HEAKERFERYREEEBUIKESR
ENEZM - AEEHNETIRMNEREE
M AR A EIREN T E - REREM A B B
REAER BMSRELEDTRY A HE
FEREBOITTE-

B

AEE-—EIERARMBRISEBERFNR -
HREMNEBIERBZNE AEED
BEWERLRERBHW  FKR L
BARELEBERESTBREYLIEERY
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BEEDEHEL AXBUHEEERA RMABAEX
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

The Group has no industry or car usage in the operation of our business
so we will not have stationary and mobile combustion emission, but we
discovered that the electricity usage will also generate GHG emission, as
such, we have consolidated the electricity usage data in our headquarter
— Hong Kong office, relevant statistics of GHG emission for the Reporting
Period is shown as the following table:

AEBNEBLEPI AP RIERERA
BEHEMALTEERELRBHMRESR-BH
PMER ERAENTEELRERB IR
ABEMEARMNEL-—FTERETEND
BEHE - RENEHNEBEREBHNBERR
BrR IR

Indicators Unit Total (2021) Total (2022)
HEt FoERy

EBE By —E-F) (ZEZZF)

Total GHG Emissions Tonnes of CO,e 137.7 92.0

mERBBEINAE WS biE S

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee 1.4 1.0

nE(84EE) WB_EthiEE RBE

Scope 1 — Stationary combustion Tonnes of COe Nil = Nil &

gE1 — BRI E WE— LIRS &

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee Nil = Nil &

nE(BEEER) o—fhikgE EE

Scope 1 — Mobile combustion Tonnes of COe Nil = Nil &

#EN —BEIRIREE WE LIRS 8

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee Nil &= Nil &

nE(B%EE) WS tiEE BE

Scope 2 — Indirect Emissions Tonnes of CO,e 137.7 92.0

#[E2— R B WS biEE

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee 1.4 1.0

BE(84EE)

M_RtREE EE

Note: GHG emissions are computed based on the ESG Reporting Guide and
Emission Factor from Cross-Sector Tools prepared by Greenhouse Gas
Protocol.

We can see from the above table, the year-on-year data decreased by 29
percent, which has essentially achieved our goal of maintaining a decrease
in key indicator data.

The Group understand the impact brought by GHG and air emission, so we
strive to reduce the air and GHG emissions through improving process flow.

B2 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022

Mizr: RERBHMEDEBRRE HEREAR
BEESINAERERERARENE

TEIAPHRAHIE-

BHARERA R BIER L TE29% ER
EREREEHERFE TRNHERE:

AEBERAMBERBEBEREFRERNE
2 AhEMBNBEERNESTIERERDRE
ERREREBHM-



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Solid Waste Emission

We uphold the principle of “4Rs”, namely Reduce, Reuse, Replace and
Recycle. As our business mainly focus on [T software trading, we do not
generate waste in our production process. In our offices, we produce only
municipal waste, which is unharmful, disposed through legal means and
collected by governmental services daily. Hence, we consider this issue
insignificant to the Group and do not report the figures here.

Wastewater

Our manufacturing process does not involve water consumption, the
Group does not have a lot of discharge to water. The wastewater of the
Group comes mainly from domestic usage from our offices. Since living
wastewater should not pose huge harm to the environment, we assume this
topic insignificant. The Group strictly discharges wastewater into municipal
sewage pipelines for uniform treatment in accordance with the “Wastewater
Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers”. The Group also calls
on employees to conserve water resources.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incidence of non-compliance in
emissions with the relevant environmental laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on our Group.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group only uses resources in the office and warehouse operation, and
we earnestly reduce resource consumption and improve economic efficiency.

The Group highly encourages the efficient use of resources while endeavours
to reduce, reuse and recycle of resources to prevent the unnecessary waste
of resources and minimize the impacts on the environment and natural
resources. Due to the nature of our business, the resources used by the
Group are principally attributed to electricity and paper consumed at our
offices and warehouses. Due to our business nature, our operation does
not involve direct consumption of water and packaging materials. Water
consumption by the Group was mainly bottled drinking water used at the
Group’s offices and warehouse only.

RE -dERERRSE (&)

[E] 82 & S B IX

BHRFARIRAN AR ER -WEH
A-E2RERRERBRE - ARRMANER
EHREREAMEEHES RANLEES
RPYEBELEY HMANRAZTEELE
EMETRE - BUREETARERSAA
BAERGHEBESE Hit AR BLER
HAEEMSLEAER HA BRI BER
i o

&K

RPN EEBREZTEK AEBE T HK
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BEREREE EMABAAULBELTEKR
AEBEREEZRR C3RKEABRBE T KEKE
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BeoAEEIITEHE THAHKER-

RBERR TEZREHAKEBEERTE
MERMBEREEIEZEZRERNES -

BIREH

AEBEERMRAEREBELETERER"
BRMUERIERBRLRESLERA -

AEEAXNBBBERINBER  AK SR
LERAE BREREENA LB - K
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mUeEARRERATY —=--—F4% b3J



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Electricity

As our Group’s business is mainly trading in nature, our electricity
consumption is normally used at our offices and warehouses, and we do
not involve large electric facilities for operation. In this report, we believe
the emission in our headquarter — Hong Kong will be the main concern, the
table below shows the electricity usage and the intensity in our headquarter
in Hong Kong during the Reporting Period:

B
HRAEBEBIZBESEE R —RAE
MRERRERE EBPAAFTERALE
REE-RARET RMABR/EMELL
MOFREREZHIH TRINFTNHESE
HERMBEELTNBEEREE

The Group Unit Total (2021) Total (2022)
wEat et

REE ES “T-—F) (ZEZZH)

Electricity consumption kWh 193,937 185,091

REE TERE

Intensity (per Employee) kWh/Employee 2,000 1,969

nE(84EE) TR &8

The Group continues its commitment to reducing energy consumption by
reminding employees to switch off their computers before leaving the office,
switch off the lighting in the conference rooms and other functional rooms
when they are not in use and turn the electronic equipment into energy
saving mode whenever possible. We also encourage our employees to keep
the office temperature at 25° C so as to ensure the efficient use of the air
conditioning.

Paper and Printing Materials

Paper usage by the Group’s offices and warehouses is limited for daily office
use as well as some printing materials such as annual/interim reports and
circulars which are required to be distributed to the shareholders. To save
the environment, the Group continues to make efforts to reduce and recycle
the use of paper. We remind our employees to develop environmentally
friendly printing and copying habits, encourage double-sided printing
and scanning of documents on the company’s server system instead of
photocopying, and implement a password system for colour printing and
separate collection of waste paper and envelopes for reuse and recycling.
For these printed materials, we will not overprint, but print on demand, and
encourage our readers to use the company’s website.

Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our Group’s operations, environmental impact and
use of natural resources is considered minimal. Nevertheless, our Group is
endeavour to protect the environment and natural resources as a responsible
corporate citizenship.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IMPACT ON COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL
RESOURCE

The Group is well aware of the importance of sustainable development
and has always regarded environmental protection as one of its key tasks.
The Group’s management acknowledges its responsibility in monitoring
environmental impacts and the use of natural resources. As a socially
responsible citizen, we are concerned about the quality of the environment.
While conducting business, we strive to minimise our impact on the
environment. Our determination to promote environmental well-being is
reflected in the introduction of our Environmental Policy.

Due to our Group’s business nature is mainly distribution of IT products,
environmental impact and use of natural resources are considered minimal.
Nevertheless, our Group is an endeavour to protect the environment and
natural resources as responsible corporate citizenship. The Group minimised
the impact on the environment through our daily life activities, for example,
switching off the computers, lights and electronic devices when we finish
using them, bringing our own cup to drink water instead of drinking plastic
bottled water, etc. We all participate in protecting the environment through
the small actions we take in our daily lives.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change is an issue that troubles a multitude of corporations and
countries around the world. The Group is not likely to be unaffected and
will not leave ourselves unguarded. We have, apart from reducing GHG
emissions, developed adaptive measures.

According to the Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”)
framework, climate-related risks can be categorised as physical risks and
transition risks. Physical risks can be acute or chronic in climate patterns.
Transition risks can be evolved from transition to a lower-carbon economy

Due to our Group’s business nature is mainly distribution of IT products,
the supply chain may be disrupted by extreme weather events, such as
typhoon. Any decrease in capacity of timely delivery may result in a loss of
revenue.

The Group has over 300 suppliers in China, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Thailand
and Singapore, etc. The diverse supplier base increases resilience of the
supply chain and the ability to operate under various conditions. Also, the
Group assigns designated project managers to have regular meetings
with suppliers, enabling quick response in identifying and designing new
distribution procedures related to climate change. The Group will evaluate
emergency transition plans regularly to enhance adaptive capacity related to
climate-related risks.

RE -dERERRSE (&)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE-#HEakEn

wE (|E)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE 3%

REPORT INDEX

Aspects
=4

Summary
ot

R g RERKRE RS

Page Index/Notes
HERS| M

A. Environmental
A IR

A1 Emission

AVEERLH)

General Disclosure

— R

Relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous waste:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.

ERERIOEERBHEN MK MO BEFER

BEEZVNEESH:

(@) B &

(o) EFHEITABERZENIEREARIROINEE -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

B iE 2R R ARRE BE R B -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility.

BHE (BE) RaREE (8E2)
MERBESNE (UWHAE) R (WER)RE (1
BEESEMEEE)
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For more details, please refer to
“‘EMISSIONS”

EREZHE B20 T8y

Not material.

Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.

TEKe
EREMBANMRERNEBL |ES
REHEHY o B U - 309 30 % 52 B2 L TH 25
1% -

For more details, please refer to
“EMISSIONS”

EREZHE B20 8y



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE -dERERRSE (&)

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
EBm Bt HEZRS| M
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where  Not material.
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,  Trading ICT’s products operation does not
per facility). have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.
FEERAEREEDES (AEE) R (ER)ZE (| ~&FEK-
BEREEFELELS) - BEEEABAMBREREBIEEELXN
S HERCY o Bt BP9 I A 45 BR L TR B
1% -
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Not material.
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production  Trading ICT’s products operation does not
volume, per facility). have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.
FESREEEYEE (AEAE) R (WER)ZEE (I F~&EK-
BERETEUELS) - EEEMBANMREREBT|EERK
SHERY e Bt FAPI I A AR ER UL TH &
1% -
A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to  For more details, please refer to
achieve them. “EMISSIONS” and “ESG STRATEGIES”
BTN EE B R AEDEL B EMKIRY FHREZFE SLH R KIER
g BoiE RERRE]
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes  Not material.

are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

HBEEEEREZEREMN T L REMFTEI AR
BEEEZERAEREEBIZAMRINSH-

Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.

TEKX-
EFEMBANREREB L EELERXR
BEERY e EH L BAPII B EE UL IR
e
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Aspects
[Em|

Summary
Bt

Page Index/Notes
HEZRS| M

A2 Use of Resources

A2E R F

General Disclosure

— MR

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

B8 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BRERER (BIEER KR EAMREM L) M B

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (KWh in '000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
REANBSNEERSBEER(NE - [skh) 8
HE(UTEFRSFAE) RBRE (NEHEZBEEN
EXE)-

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

BREKEREE (&

J=]
g
=
)
i
Kl
Pt
i
ll

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

MILPRET IR E AR B E R RER S LB RM
TRERE) P58 -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing

water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

T SR BUE RKIR £ A A AR RE - DA KPR 3280 A 7K
M B IR N AETEL B RATRIA 5 -

Annual Report 2022

For more details, please refer to “USE OF

RESOURCES”
REAEZFE F2H ERER]

For more details, please refer to “USE OF
RESOURCES”

EREZHE H2HEREM]

Not material.

Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.

TEKC
EEEMBANMREREBT|EERKN
S HERUY o Bt - 3 P9 AR 45 BR L TH B
1% -

For more details, please refer to “USE OF
RESOURCES” and “ESG STRATEGIES”
FRAEZHE F2MTERERI XIR
Bt g REREKE]

Not material.

Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.

TEKo
EBREMBANMREREBT|EERK
BHEY e F o BAPI I A EE UL IR B
1% -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE -dERERRSE (&)

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
[Em Bt BEZRS| M
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in  Not material.

tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

HRmAABRMHNEE (UEFE) R (ER)E
HEBhE-

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

ABRIERRAEIR

General Disclosure

— MR EE

A3.1

A4 Climate Change
AdRIREZ L

General Disclosure

— R

A4

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on
the environment and natural resources.

MEBETAHRERRAERERERZENHEK -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.

M EBEDEHRERAARERNEAZERE KRR
EREBTENTH-

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

BRI REHERLARGHETAEEZENERR
N0

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.

BB R R HBTAELAXENENRIZERH
FH REH{TH-

BHERERARLT

Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.

TEK-
EFAMBAMREREB T |ELKR
S HERCY o Bt BP9 I A 45 BR L TR B
1% -

For more details, please refer to “IMPACT
ON COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENTAL
AND NATURAL RESOURCE”
FHEEZFHE B2HIHTE RER
RAB R T2

For more details, please refer to “IMPACT
ON COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENTAL
AND NATURAL RESOURCE”

BEREZFE F2H LR RRER
RABRNTE

For more details, please refer to “CLIMATE
CHANGE”

BHE S B2 (MR

For more details, please refer to “CLIMATE
CHANGE”

EREZHE B20 [RIxEL]
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
EBm Bt HEZRS| M
Social

HE

B1 Employment and Labour Practices

BIEERZETER

General Disclosure Following information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment

and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

EATMEFE BEREA TERE - R FEH

g Zulb RER AR E M SRR :

(a) BX &

(o) BETHBETARBERTENEMERIBDNER -

— R EE

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for
example, full- or part-time), age group and geographical
region.

RIER - EEEAL (2R FRE)  FheiE R K= E
DHEE B

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

BRI FRAR RMEE DAEERALLE

B2 Health and Safety
B2 Z 2

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

FARMRZE2TEREIMAEBES#2BELAEN:

(a) EE: &

(o) BETFHEITABBRZENMEBEELAROINEL -

General Disclosure

— R
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For more details, please refer to
“EMPLOYMENT”

BEREZHIE B2 ERE]

For more details, please refer to
“EMPLOYMENT”

EREZHIE 20 [ERE)

For more details, please refer to
“EMPLOYMENT”
FAE LT H2H [ERE]

For more details, please refer to “HEALTH

AND SAFETY”
FHEEZFHE F2HERRET 2]



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE -dERERRSE (&)

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
EBm Bt HEZRS| M
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in  For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
each of the past three years including the reporting year. AND SAFETY”
RBEZF (BERSEE)FFRIFBREMETH FHEZFE F2HREEELZR]
AH &
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
AND SAFETY”
HTGHEATIERE- EHEZFHE F2HREREERT 2]
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures ~ For more details, please refer to “HEALTH

adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
AL PTER A B BB R R e 2 4 bt - DA AR BT I BR
B

B3 Development and Training

B3# & & 3% 5

General Disclosure

— R IR

B3.1

B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

BRARTHE B BT TIEME () AN 38 I B AR A UK -
BEE -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

RERNREEEN (NMaREEE FREEE)ES
WEIMEEB DL -

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
RN EEERED  BEREETRZ I FHRE -

AND SAFETY”
BREZHE F2HREET 2]

For more details, please refer to
“DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

BHEZHG F2H [ERIEI
For more details, please refer to
“DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING”
BHEZHG F2H [ERIEI
For more details, please refer to

“DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING”
BEREZHE F2H [BRREI]
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EBm Bt HEZRS| M
B4 Labour Standards

B4%5 T2 |

General Disclosure

—RIKEE

B4.1

B4.2

Relating to preventing child and forced labour:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.

BRAD IEE TR H 45 TH:

(@ B &

(o) EFHBETAGERTENEREARLIROINER -

Description of measures to review employment practices
to avoid child and forced labour.
R BB N E R R ET RaHl4 T

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

R ERRERBERRER A BIERREN TR -

B5 Supply Chain Management

B5fftEHEEE

General Disclosure

— MR

B5.1

B5.2
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Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.
ERAERHEENRE e RREBCR -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

iR B D MHEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

w5 RS A e A0 1B 0 - (R H 1T A RS DIl e (e
FIEE  AREBEEOMNRITRER A
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For more details, please refer to “LABOUR
STANDARDS”

BEREZHIE B2 85T 2

For more details, please refer to “LABOUR
STANDARDS”
EBAE LI B2M 4 ITER]

For more details, please refer to “LABOUR
STANDARDS”
EHEEZFIE F2HIEITEA]

For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
CHAIN MANAGEMENT”
BHEZFE F2H [HEEER]

For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
CHAIN MANAGEMENT”

EAE LIS B2 [HEREE]

For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY

CHAIN MANAGEMENT”

EREZHIE B2MHEEEE]
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Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes

BE Bt BEERS M

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental  For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are ~ CHAIN MANAGEMENT”
implemented and monitored.
M BREZRHERTERGMRERMERABOED . BHEELHE H2H0HERESE]
IARABREIT REER T %

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally ~ For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY

preferable products and services when selecting
suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
M EBRRHEERR RS S ARREmEREHNED -
AR AT REERTTE -

B6 Product Responsibility

B6EMET

General Disclosure

— AR EE

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.

ERFIRMERMRBNERELZ S BE E8H R

B 2= B A R ER

(@ ¥Rk

(o) BETHETABERYENEBEERIARDNER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

EEHCEZXERAHTRL2E2RBFEAME DK

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

RERRERNMRIEHIRFEE L RS 7%

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

T B N (R IB AN EERE R BB -

CHAIN MANAGEMENT”

EREZHE B2 HEEEE]

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY”

EREZHIE B2 EREE]

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Product
Quality and Safety”

EREZHIE BB EREE-ER
EERTE]

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Customer
Opinions and Complaints”

EREZFE B2HERET-&BF
B R B

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY - Intellectual
Property Rights”

EREZHE BB EREE—MNH
ERE]

mEEARBRERATY —=--—F4% 03
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Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
BE Bt BEERS M
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall For more details, please refer to
procedures. “PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY - Product
Quality and Safety”
HEERTRIEREREDWIERT - FEEZHE S22 EnET-—E®
EERTE]
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy For more details, please refer to

B7 Anti-corruption
B7TRE’S

General Disclosure

— AR IR

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3
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policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BB EBERRERLEBBER  UAREERTRESR
T8

Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.

ERAM IEBRER PR HGRF RO BB

(@ B &

(o) BETHBETARBERTENEBERIARDINER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RBEHRNEBETAXIHEERLT D EANEITH
ARMEVBIE RFALR-

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

TSR R R mE T AR EERTTRERF A

Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.
HitmEBEBERE TREORESE -
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“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY - Privacy
and Data Protection”

ERELZHE BB ERET-ALE
K& RHRE]

For more details, please refer to “ANTI-
CORRUPTION”

EREZHE B2HTRES]

For more details, please refer to “ANTI-
CORRUPTION”

EREZHE #F2HIRER]

For more details, please refer to “ANTI-

CORRUPTION”

EREZHE F2HIRER]

For more details, please refer to “ANTI-

CORRUPTION”
FREZFE F2HRES]
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Summary
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Page Index/Notes
HEZRS| M

B8 Community Investment

B8t ERE

General Disclosure

— R IKEE

B8.1

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BN R2ERTRETASENELRTZME
REEXBLZHEERLEMNRAEEK -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,
sport).

FIERER (NHE BREFE - SIF R -BE X

ft-85)-

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
area.

EBIREMBHAER (NS RAEFH) -

BHERERARLT

For more details, please refer to
“‘COMMUNITY INVESTMENT”

BEREZHE 20 HRKRE]

For more details, please refer to

“‘COMMUNITY INVESTMENT”

BEREZHE 20 HRKRE]

For more details, please refer to
“‘COMMUNITY INVESTMENT”
EHEZFE F2H HEKRE]
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIHRSE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this report.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor
confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) except for some code provisions which are explained in the relevant
paragraphs below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of its
business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises 11 members, consisting of five Executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Gu Sanjun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xia Bin (Resigned on 4 January 2023)
Mr. Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah
Mr. Zhang Dongjie

(Appointed on 19 January 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Li Yi

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from
time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors and at the same time representing at
least one-third of the Board with at least one Independent Non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERKRE (E)

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Board Diversity

The Board has established a policy setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with the aims of
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as
achieving better performance of the Company. In designing the board
composition, board diversity can be achieved through consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and education background, professional skills, industry experience and
knowledge and length of service. In considering these perspectives on
diversity, the Company will also take into account factors based on its
business model and specific needs from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will be responsible for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying out this
responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee had taken the Board Diversity Policy into account in
relation to the appointment of directors of the Company.

The current Board consists of a diverse mix of Board members with different
appropriate skills, knowledges and experience to promote and achieve
better performance of the Company. The Company has achieved gender
diversity in the past and will continue to identify suitable potential candidates
to the Board to achieve gender diversity.

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets,
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial

internal control and risk management systems, material

information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Functions

In order to meet higher standard of the corporate governance requirement,
the Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirement; and reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the code and disclosure in this report.

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERKRE (E)

Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings
The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year ended
31 December 2022 is set out below:

ESERH
EELFEBRALZERE
BEEHEREBE-_S-_—_F+-_A=+—H
HFERAZESFEER 22BN T

Attendance/Number of

Meetings
Directors 2= HE BITEERH
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jialin FEMELE 4/4
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam TRETEE 4/4
Mr. Li Yue FIPEAE 4/4
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau BRI 52 4/4
Mr. Gu Sanjun BE=ErE 4/4
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Xia Bin BiELE 4/4
Mr. Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah SRR P A 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFFTES
Mr. Li Wei TELE 4/4
Mr. Lam Hin Chi EmBiE 4/4
Mr. Wang Xiaolong THERESE 4/4
Mr. Li Yi F55%4% 4/4

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are
served to all Directors in accordance with the Code before the meetings.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.
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The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
of the Company normally attend all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or
any of their associates have a material interest.

General Meetings

Under the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and non-
executives directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Li Jialin, Mr. Ong Wei Hiam,
Mr. Gu Sanjun, Mr. Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah, Mr. Xia Bin, Mr. Li Yi and Mr.
Wang Xiaolong, were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 26 May 2022 due to other important engagements. All
other directors had attend the 2022 annual general meeting to answer
questions and collect views of shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The current Chairman and CEO of the Company is Mr. Li Jialin. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same
person will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Directors and the management of the Company and considers that this
structure will enable the Group to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Directors will meet regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERKRE (E)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with
the Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed
for any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of
service shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a
specific months of notice in writing. Under the service agreements, the initial
annual emoluments of each Executive Director is fixed and the remuneration
payable to each of them will be reviewed by the Board each year.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, Board diversity, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of
the Board regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry
out the selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, the Company’s needs, the Board Diversity Policy and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting, one third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one third), shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.
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The Board has recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Company’s circular contains detailed information of the Directors
standing for re-election.

Continuing Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company continuously updates Directors on the legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars or reading
relevant materials and provided a record of training they received during the
year to the Company.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company also has established a written guideline on terms no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERKRE (E)

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority members of each Board committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors and the list of the Chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under the section of “Corporate Information” of this
annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors
(including one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee are a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@  To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system
and associated procedures.

(d)  To review arrangements which employees of the Company can use
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2022 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting
and compliance procedures, the risk management and internal control
systems and the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings is set
out below:
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Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman) BERBEE (LE) 2/2
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Mr. Wang Xiaolong FREgRELE 2/2
Mr. Li Vi F5554% 2/2

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s policy and structure for all
directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for development remuneration
policy; reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors; reviewing and
approving termination compensation, dismissal or removal compensation
arrangements, and ensuring that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2022 to review (a) whether the remuneration package of
the directors and senior management are reasonable; (b) the basis of the
remuneration package, i.e. qualification, working experience and market level
of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed to be
made.

The Remuneration Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors. The attendance of individual members at Remuneration
Committee meeting is set out below:
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Number of Meetings

HEBITEERE

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) TREEE(£E) 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBLE 1/1
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FRERESL A 1/1
Mr. Li Yi TS50 E 1/1

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become board members, assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executives Directors, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Nomination Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2022 for reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director as chairman,
and four Independent Non-executive Directors as members. The attendance
of individual members at Nomination Committee meeting is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HEBITEBRY

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman) TEMNEE (FE) 1/
Mr. Li Wei FREEE 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi EEBLE 1/1
Mr. Wang Xiaolong TFRERESL & 1/1
Mr. Li Vi F5554% 1/1

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Should be
another way round Independent Auditor’s Report”.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$7,153,000 and HK$1,695,000 by KPMG for auditing and
non-auditing services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investments and have a better control on the business and operation of the
Company. The Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of its
risk management and internal control systems on an annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and
authority to the senior management. As a leading and comprehensive ICT
products distributor, our Group has many well-known suppliers and vendors
as well as extensive downstream channel partners. In order to cooperate
with different parties, our senior management team will be delegated to
take different responsibility such as product management, supply chain
management, operational management and financial management, etc., to
ensure that the Group has a smooth business operation to reduce risk and
uncertainties that may be caused.

The management of the Company is responsible for designing, implementing
and monitoring the Group’s risk management and internal control
framework, covering all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The risk management and internal control framework
also provides for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic meetings and independent reviews
on the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and
risks, develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified
risks, and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Board acknowledged that it is their responsibilities to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control systems. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company has established a policy in relation to the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Board as a whole is responsible
for identifying and considering the disclosure requirements and guidelines
regarding inside information.

78 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022

[ B B HE R B BR 4

%$@EA%EL Bz EARERRAZ

ZHIE LRERRORE  E A RE S
ARRZEBREBE - EZGTAEEFR
R B TR Ko ) R B AR R 2 AR

ARRAREVNEAGHTBZEGRE B
Qn%f FTRAERELEEREEEER
RE-FRELMEZEMNEMBABMRE SR
DB AEERFSANRHERRARD
ARKETHREBBMF REZHTRSAE"
HPMeSREEEEBKEERIAEL

SLHAREQEE HEEEE SEEER
RUBERSHE REAEELEEES

g - BAK AT gE IR 2 b R T HEE R & e

ARBIZERBRAERT ATRERLE
BEezRBERERANMEZERE BEREM

BEREE BREUB 2ERARERE-
EEREERAGEERBE I HG R EER

o
ZoN

EEENHHERNBMAZEERITENEH
WETEH IR UHHESEMEREE
RER Sl ETEERREHEBREREE
el o Bl WMEZEZEGERE NS
R-BREZEGHRNEZGERTIAMEARSE
EWRMHEHEBES-

EFECHRAEEECHEERZIRAREE R
NEBEEIE IR - % F 6K 5 £ 5 IR MIFHR
AREEREHER AR BEARBNLE
AERBRASIERRBFAEMIERLY 2R

i o

ARAREH EERREREMANEEE ZK
R EZ22RBEAEANBINREREHAAE
BEZHTEREKRIES



Besides, the Company regularly reminds the directors and employees on the
compliance with all the requirements regarding inside information. Also, the
directors and employees are kept informed on the latest regulatory updates
to ensure they are complied with the regulatory requirements.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function
as well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing risk management and internal control systems of the Group is
effective and adequate.

There is an internal audit function in some of the Group’s subsidiaries to
carry out independent assessment of risks and testing of controls of the
business and operation of the Company in order to provide a reasonable
assurance that adequate controls and governance are in operation. The
Board considers that as the structure of some of our business is rather
simple and direct within the Group, the Board will continue to review on
annual basis the need of the internal audit function to be extended to the
whole Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Associations, any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meeting of the Company, shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Unit 3312, 33/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary.

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to propose
a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting by
following the procedures set out in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Regarding the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director, please refer to the procedures available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of other Board committees, and the external
auditors, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.
To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’
meetings (other than on procedural and administrative matters) will be
voted by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.
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To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website
at www.vstecs.com, where extensive information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there had been no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESERTE

The directors (the “Directors”) of VSTECS Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
are pleased to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the development of information technology (“IT”)
product channel and provision of technical solution integration services.
The three major business segments are enterprise systems which provides
enterprise system tools for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services; Consumer
electronics which provides finished IT products; and cloud computing which
provides cloud computing solutions and services.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 12 and
pages 14 to 18 respectively of this annual report. A description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing, discussion on the
Group’s environmental policies, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are contained in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 14 to 18 of this annual report. The Environmental, Social
and Governance Report are set out on pages 25 to 65 of this annual report.
The Corporate Governance Report are set out on pages 66 to 81 of the
annual report. In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is presented in the Financial
Summary on page 216 of this annual report.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2022 represented
approximately 6% (2021: approximately 7%) of the Group’s total turnover,
and the combined total of the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 15% (2021: approximately 16%) of the Group’s total turnover
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2022
represented approximately 18% (2021: approximately 23%) of the Group’s
total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 52% (2021: approximately 60%) of the Group’s
total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2022.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 107.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2022 of HK17 cents per ordinary share (2021: HK27 cents).

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy adopted by the Company is based on a number of
factors and conditions. Pursuant to the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company, any declaration
of final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company and the distribution of dividend should be made of out of profit.
When recommending an interim or a final dividend, the Board will take into
account, inter alia, the financial results, liquidity position, general business
conditions and strategies, capital requirement for future development as well
as the distributable reserves of the Company (comprise of the Company’s
reserves excluding capital redemption reserve as set out in note 16 to the
financial statements) and the retained earnings of other members of the
Group and any other factors the Board may deem relevant from time to
time.
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Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 109 to 110 and note 16 to the financial
statements respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Borrowings and lease liabilities

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in notes 20 and 21 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
14 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 216.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company repurchased
4,254,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The
repurchased shares were cancelled. Details of the repurchase of shares by
the Company are as follows:
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BE HEIFEEES

REBE-ZT-__F+-_A=+—RHIEFE"
RAARRERATEREE 54,254,000 %
BR-BERME TUEH A2 FEERK
MZFBWAT

No. of Highest price Lowest price Aggregated

shares per share per share price

Month of repurchase repurchased (HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
BEz BRESER SREEER RERK

LAE A7) RGOEAR (E7T) () (&)
April 2022 —E-__FWA 18,000 7.10 6.98 126,600
May 2022 —E--FHA 284,000 6.34 6.16 1,760,140
June 2022 —E-FKA 682,000 6.31 5.83 4,162,520
July 2022 —E-_F+A 450,000 6.13 5.98 2,723,360
August 2022 —E-—FN\A 218,000 4.99 4.93 1,079,980
September 2022 —E-FNA 2,602,000 5.04 4.20 12,388,580
4,254,000 22,241,180

The Board believes that such repurchase of shares will lead to an
enhancement of the net asset value of the Company and/or its earnings per
share.

Apart from the above, during the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company also acquired, through some trust setup specifically for purpose
of employment compensation, a total of 5,714,000 ordinary shares of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 from the open market
at a total cash consideration of approximately HK$34,965,000. These shares
would be used primarily for providing employment/executive compensation
of the Group. The costs of acquisition of shares are recognised in the
“Deferred reserve” in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s shares.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Gu Sanjun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xia Bin (Resigned on 4 January 2023)
Mr. Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah
Mr. Zhang Dongjie

(Appointed on 19 January 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Li Yi

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting, one third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one third), shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

Details of the Directors proposed to be re-elected are contained in the
Company’s circular.
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The Company confirms that it has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company considers the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific
months of notice in writing.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed by the Board
but subject to re-election or retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the year ended 31 December 2022 or at any time during the year under
review.

Biographical Details of Directors and Company
Secretary

Brief biographical details of Directors and company secretary are set out on
pages 19 to 24.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or required
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EENRESTHRAESRKRAY -
@gﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁzifg%‘ﬁ&
K2

= = —AZ+—HB ARAESE
BETRAEBRARRSHETMMBE LS
EERBFHFLBEGD (BEEMIFES7T1E)
[BEREEE])EXVE) 2B 1H - 186
BHSEEZFFTERBEREZSFRBEENE
XVEBETRSDBEMNE AR LB
BaEAR (PREBESREZES RBEEH
ZEBRXEEERRBER 2SR
) R/RABARBARRAREESFRGE
GHFE326FE 2 ERMzEER AR
RARE LR AEE ARRF) KR AT
wmEKBEAT

RAXTRGD RAEER D 2 ED

Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary shares or issued share
Long/Short underlying shares capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity held Company
BEEERY e NEIIEE- 6y
BEHA 7 RE 14 HEROEHE BREAZBOEIL
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 82,333,200 5.67%
FEMFEE e BEREBA
Long Interest of a controlled 311,228,000 21.45%
e HEfEER (Note 1)
(Bst1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.08%
TR ENI £ (Note 2)
(Hiztz)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 2,193,600 0.15%
TR EE o) EmEAA
Mr. Gu Sanjun Long Beneficial owner 150,000 0.01%
B=FhAE Gy EnEBA
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau Long Beneficial owner 150,000 0.01%
BREIM e 5o EmEAA
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. 311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse,
Ms. Liu Li.

2. 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of
Mr. Li Jialin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
nor the chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2022, so far is known to the Directors, the following
persons had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/
or were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meeting of any other members of the Group:

FERREEMBALTRERS -
@gﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzifﬁ%‘ﬁ&
K2

R-E-—F+-A=+—H mEZFHM"
IMTATRARRZ KM R, HEB D+
HEERBEZLFRIBEKRIFEXVE E2R39
B EXNAEARARBIRBIMHEE RS
E/SKkR RSB RARRDRIREEF
REEGEGEI6KEFEZECMzERR
wARRSERKEATEEABERTRA
EEAMEMKERARZBRREAG ERAZ
EAHzERNENBRATFEESMERERE
5% A £z

Number of
ordinary shares or Approximate
Long/Short underlying shares percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity held shareholding
BEEERY AR RE
EEHA %" RE 14 HEROD#E Epald
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 82,333,200 5.67%

FEMEE e BEnER A

Long Interest of a controlled corporation 311,228,000 21.45%

HE REEE R (Note 1)

(Bfat1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.08%

e RIEHER (Note 2)

(Hztz)
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 14.08%

BIF 2+ 5= BEnEA A

Long Interest of a controlled corporation 311,228,000 21.45%

e ZPEEE S (Note 1)

(H17E1)
Long Family interest 82,333,200 5.67%

e ENiY 4 (Note 3)

(H5£3)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continvea)

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Number of
ordinary shares or

E=EHRE (&)

FERREEMBALTRERS -
HEROREER Z2ERR

Approximate

Long/Short underlying shares percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity held shareholding
FEEBRY A IR #E
BEHA WA g1 HERDHE Epild
L &L Limited Long Beneficial owner 311,228,000 21.45%
e BB A (Note 4)
(Hi7t4)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Long Beneficial owner 252,211,998 17.38%
e (FE)BRAA e BEnEA A (Note 5)
(#1:ts5)
RN 6 T8 B A SR AR 19 Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.38%
BRATA gE AR ER (Note 6)
(Hzte)
AT EZERER AT Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.38%
e R E R (Note 7)
(H1727)
AT ARBRFTES Long Interest of a controlled corporation 152,211,998 10.49%
REEEEREES e Ry EEER (Note 7)
(Htat7)
A S D ERTT Long Security interest in shares 152,211,998 10.49%
HE A #E FR M 2 (Note 8)
(Ht:t8)
RINEEEF Long Interest of a controlled corporation 152,211,998 10.49%
e R R (Note 8)
(H1728)
Fidelity Puritan Trust Long Beneficial owner 130,406,626 8.99%
e BEnEA A
FMR LLC Long Interest of a controlled corporation 145,273,600 10.01%
HE REEE R

BHERERARLT
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continvea)

Notes:

1.

311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse,
Ms. Liu Li.

204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of
Mr. Li Jialin.

81,833,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Mr. Li
Jialin and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by %
e mutEER G BR DA,

18.30% of the shares of A Th 15 gk i L FE SR () AR A 7 are held by
YT EERAR A A

100% of the shares of &I T E LR AR A A are held by &I AR
BNEEEEEEERLZE8E.

89.26% of the shares of B3t} O R 7T are held by BIRIMNEEIE 2.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, so far is known to the
Directors, no person had an interest and/or a short position in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
and/or was directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meeting of any other members of the Group, or any options in
respect of such capital.
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Share Options

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April 2002 (the
“Old Scheme”) has been expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group. During the year under review, no share options have been granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the New Scheme. Further details of the
New Scheme are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of the companies comprising the Group, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under
the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year under review.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have no interests in any competing
business.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors or
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets of the Company against all losses and liabilities which they may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty. The Company has arranged for
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors and officers arising out of corporate
activities.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Connected Transactions

Connected transactions (also related party transactions) have been disclosed
in note 32 of the financial statements.

The above transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
entered into on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis
and the terms of the above transactions are fair and reasonable so far as
the shareholders of the Company are concerned and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company taken as a whole.

The above connected transactions constituted exempted connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as each of the percentage ratios is less
than 0.1% as defined under the Listing Rules when the agreements were
entered into.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set out
in note 29 to the financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

Audit Committee

The Company’s audited results for the year ended 31 December 2022
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee who was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been
made.
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Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

15 3L % By B 3R

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of VSTECS Holdings
Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VSTECS Holdings
Limited, (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
105 to 215, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial staterments section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHMBE (F)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FRESTEE

MREFETEAEIRERMNEZHE RAY ARG EVBERERNEARAEEN TR GELEHERAERMETE
BEalBRRILARARETREN AN TSHELETRRHEBNER -

Valuation of inventories
Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies set out in note 2.11.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s inventories, which consist of various information  Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
technology products and enterprise equipment, amounted inventories included the following:

to HK$10,072,285,000 (approximately 31% of the Group’s
current assets) as at 31 December 2022.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories
based on expected demand, future selling prices and
the future expenses necessary to make the sales. Future
demand and selling prices of technology products are
highly susceptible to factors such as industry standards,
technological changes and customer preferences, which are
constantly changing and could change very rapidly.

Determining provision for inventories requires the exercise of
significant management judgement as actual selling prices of
individual inventory items may fall below their costs or carrying
values.

We identified the net realisable value of inventories as a key
audit matter because any write-down or provision may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
and because the estimation of the net realisable values
involves the exercise of significant management judgement
which can be inherently uncertain.

obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design
and implementation of the Group’s key internal controls
over the inventory write-down and provision assessment
process, including the Group’s monitoring controls over
slow-moving inventories;

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing reports were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual items
with relevant purchase records, including purchase invoices
and goods receipt notes;

evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories were
sold at prices above their carrying values subsequent to
the reporting date;

evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories may
be obsolete or slow-moving by comparing the quantity
of inventories at the reporting date with the quantity sold
subsequent to the reporting date and with reference to
inventory turnover days during the current and previous
financial years; and

assessing the historical accuracy of management’s
estimation of write-down and provision for inventories
at the end of the previous financial year by examining
movements in the balance of provision for inventories
during the current year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBRE (F)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHMBE (F)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies set out in note 2.8.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s trade receivables amounted to
HK$13,070,678,000 (approximately 40% of the Group’s
current assets), net of an expected credit loss allowance of
HK$770,181,000 as at 31 December 2022,

Management measured loss allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses. For customers about whom
the Group has specific information, the loss allowance is
assessed on an individual basis. For the other customers, the
trade receivables are segmented by geographical locations,
since the loss patterns for customers in different geographical
locations are significantly different based on the past
experience of the Group. The loss allowance is determined
based on ageing of the trade receivables and loss rates,
adjusted for current economic conditions and forward-looking
information.

We identified the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables as a key audit matter because it involves
significant management judgement which is inherently
subjective and thereby increase the risk of error or
management bias.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design
and implementation of the Group’s key internal controls
relating to credit control, debt collection, and estimation of
expected credit loss allowance;

° evaluating the Group’s accounting policy for measuring
expected credit loss allowance with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

o for trade receivables for which the loss allowance
is determined on an individual basis, evaluating
management’'s assessment by assessing the
creditworthiness of the customers with reference to publicly
available information and reviewing underlying documents
where applicable;

° for trade receivables for which the loss allowance
is measured using a provision matrix, assessing the
appropriateness of management’s basis of customer
segmentation with reference to the historical loss rates for
customers in the different geographical locations; testing
the accuracy of the historical default data and evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and forward-looking
information;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing reports were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items with the underlying documentation, including sales
invoices; and

° re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance as at 31
December 2022 based on the Group’s accounting policies.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBRE (F)
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHMBE (F)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBRE (F)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements ontinueq)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBRE (F)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements ontinueq)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cheng Pui Ngar.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ReMBKAE

As at 31 December 2022 RA=E-—4+=-H=+—8

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 FBT FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BEREE 5 917,523 680,397
Intangible assets BEE 6 356,037 358,069
Interests in associates B R R RS 8 676,423 988,860
Interest in a joint venture REETENER 9 7,873 11,333
Deferred expenses ERER X 10 991 52
Deferred tax assets REFIEE E 19 166,050 182,665
2,124,897 2,221,376
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAMERFKIA 10 14,338,283 16,230,727
Other financial assets HEhemEE 11 4,402,211 1,139,994
Inventories FE 12 10,072,285 9,336,337
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHES 13 3,828,930 3,247,498
32,641,709 29,955,056
Total assets HEE 34,766,606 32,176,432
EQUITY s
Share capital & A 14 145,092 145,517
Reserves 5 7,512,686 7,765,913
Total equity HRERS 7,657,778 7,911,430
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
mEMBRRE (&)

As at 31 December 2022 A =—ZE - —F+—-HA=+—H

2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—4F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 FBT FET
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities FRBER
Contract liabilities AHEaE 17 2,379 855
Lease liabilities HEARE 20 117,407 147,002
Borrowings HE 21 1,447,455 1,543,000
Deferred tax liabilities EIERTEEE 19 36,322 44,571
1,603,563 1,735,428
Current liabilities REERE
Trade and other payables EH5NEMENFRIE 17 14,116,329 16,538,627
Other financial liabilities HEHtmemaE 18 3,708,334 321,173
Contract liabilities AHEaE 17 449,341 707,975
Lease liabilities HERE 20 107,841 102,530
Borrowings == 21 6,975,228 4,735,318
Taxation payable FETRETR 148,192 123,951
25,505,265 22,529,574
Total liabilities we s 27,108,828 24,265,002
Total equity and liabilities EEhaER% 34,766,606 32,176,432
Net current assets RBEEFE 7,136,444 7,425,482
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBERS 9,261,341 9,646,858

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March BBE&@R - ZT -4 - -+ =ZH#LEERK

2023. RE T2 o

Li Jialin Ong Wei Hiam, William

Z{EM FER

Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 112 to 215 form part of these financial statements. F112E215BE 2T RAMB R KT 2 — &
/]j\ °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
ReRax

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -~ +_-A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FBT FET
Revenue W 22 77,323,994 78,335,446
Cost of sales SHE R A (73,946,070) (74,696,377)
Gross profit FEH| 3,377,924 3,639,069
Other gains, net Hu A %58 23 15,313 65,674
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HAXZ (1,369,453) (1,420,559)
Administrative expenses TERFAX (695,516) (622,972)
Operating profit S R 24 1,328,268 1,661,212
Finance costs &R 25 (258,490) (146,521)
1,069,778 1,514,691
Share of associates’ profits DAGEEE R )& A 8 14,633 58,903
Share of a joint venture’s loss DMEEEREEE 9 (2,628) (18,458)
Profit before taxation FR 758 1 V5 ) 1,081,783 1,555,136
Taxation TiIE 26 (258,712) (241,110)
Profit for the year F R 823,071 1,314,026
Attributable to: BT AL REA
Equity shareholders of the Company RAREZEFEA 823,071 1,314,026
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) FREF (B
- Basic — &R 28 58.15 cents Bl  92.74 cents /&1l
- Diluted —#E 28 58.15 cents Bl 92.74 cents &l
Dividends attributable to equity shareholders BEFAEAEERE
Final dividend proposed R AR HR S 27()) 247,000 394,000

The notes on pages 112 to 215 form part of these financial statements. F112E215BE 2T RAMB R KT 2 — &

S
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GReHEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -~ +—-F=+—HILFE

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Profit for the year F N A 823,071 1,314,026
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax: FREMEEMBA  BFE:

Exchange differences ME =58 (640,294) 85,751
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEHEBABEE 182,777 1,399,777
Attributable to: LT ATRERN:

Equity shareholders of the Company AREEERFAA 182,777 1,399,777
The notes on pages 112 to 215 form part of these financial statements. F112E215BE 2T RAMB R KT 2 — &

N
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SeERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ—Z - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

Equity
attributable
to the
Capital Company's
Share Share  redemption Capital General  Translation Other Deferred Retained equity
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings  shareholders
Y|
EXER EREEA
i RHRE fE BRGE - EiGfE g1 EEGE REEF EfbER
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tt TR T L Tt T T T T
Note () Note i) Note (i) Nofe fiy) Note (i) Note i) Note
g7} Wty ViG] Vi) i1 Wit Vil
Balance as at 1 January 2021 RIEZ-F-F-BrEH 145,445 880910 8,707 1,543 271,071 125,938 (84,239 (103,856) 5,580,767 6,826,286
Profit for the year FRah| - - - - - - - - 1314026 1,314,026
Other comprehensive income Eth2ERA - - - - - 85,751 - - - 85,751
Total comprehensive income for the year £RZENALE - - - - - 85,751 - - 1314026 1309777
Dividend paid BRikE - - - - - - - - (320,138) (320,138)
Transfer of reserve GEEER - - - - 57,207 - - - (57,297) -
Share options exercised BEFERE 7 2275 - (744 - - - - - 1603
Deferred shares purchased BEEEERR - - - - - - - (22,758) - (22,758)
Vesting of deferred shares EERNER - - - - - - - 26,660 - 26,680
Balance as at 31 December 2021 RZB=—F+-fA=1-A
i 145,517 883,185 8,707 799 328,368 211,689 (84,239 (99,954) 6,517,358 7911430
Representing: f&:
Share capital e 145517
Reserves BE 7,371,918
Proposed dividend RERE 394,000
7911430
Balance s at 1 January 2022 RIZZZE-A-H7EH 145517 883,185 8,707 799 328,368 211,689 (84,239) (99,954 6,517,235 791,430
Proft for the year FRgh| - - - - - - - - 823,071 823,071
Other comprehensive income E2EUA - - - - - (640,204) - - - (640,204)
Total compreensive income for the year  SAZENALE - - - - - (640,204) - - 823,071 182,777
Dividend paid BRRE - - - - - - - - (392,89) (392,89)
Transfer of reserve GEEER - - - - 49,287 - - - (49,287) -
Share repurchased BERG
- par value -HE (425) - - - - - - - - (425)
- premium paid -BREE - - - - - - - - (21,816) (21,816)
- transfer between reserves -EEEEE - - 425 - - - - - (425) -
Deferred shares purchased BEEELERHA - - - - - - - (26,886) - (26,886)
Vesting of deferred shares EXRNER - - - - - - - 5,594 - 5504
Balance as at 31 December 2022 RZBZZF+-A=1-A
b 145,092 883,185 9,132 799 377,655 (428,605) (84,239) (121,246) 6,876,005 7,657,778
Representing: ft&:
Share capital RA 145,092
Reserves BE 7,265,686
Proposed dividend HERE 247,000
7,657,778

The notes on pages 112 to 215 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (continued)
RERERERRE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Notes:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

110

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference
between the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired and that of the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in April 2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April
2002; and (c) the premium arising from the new issue of shares, net of
share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled
shares of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted to employees and directors
of the Company and the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in Note 2.17(d).

According to the current Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10%
of their profits after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the
statutory surplus reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
For the purpose of calculating the amount to be transferred to the reserve,
the profit after taxation is the amount determined under PRC accounting
standards. The amount of transfer to this reserve has to be made before
profit distribution to shareholders. In accordance with the relevant
regulations, this reserve may be used to make up any losses incurred or to
increase the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in Note 2.3(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of subsidiaries
for the transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
(Note 2.2(a)).

Deferred reserve comprises the cost of acquisition of the Company’s
shares through a trust setup specifically for the purpose of employment
compensation. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in Note 2.13(c).
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
GReRaRERR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -~ +_-A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—=—-= T —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ih=s FET FHT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEZRERE
Net cash generated from operations KEMS RS FHE 30(a) 297,719 950,008
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEEFNER (163) (5,576)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong BAEBIEINGIE (230,600) (254,800)
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEHMERS TR 66,956 689,632
Cash flows from investing activities KREE RS RE
Interest received 2 U A B 20,172 20,565
Payment for purchase of property, BEYE BERZED
plant and equipment (N (21,588) (47,801)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets BEEFEENTR (2,448) (4,701)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEE - BE &
plant and equipment BAEPTSHIE 301 7,146
Deposits pledged EEMER (583,300) -
Deemed acquisition of Associated company to FYNEJE =Gyt ERUNE]
subsidiary, net of cash acquired HERATIEEZ R 10,368 -
Purchase of financial assets BESRMEE (546,384) (208,291)
Disposals of financial assets HESmERE 42,094 206,609
Dividends received from associates SR NE il 23,497 16,391
Net cash used in investing activities A EBFTA Zfﬁiﬁ?’r%’ﬁ (1,057,288) (10,082)
Cash flows from financing activities MBIz EERE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEERSERLD 30(b) (131,152) (90,584)
Payment for the repurchase of shares B8 Bl AR 0 1< 3K (22,241) -
Proceeds from exercise of share options T BARERTIS UR - 1,603
Proceeds from new bank loans L IRITERES ,’K 30(b) 23,176,179 13,890,134
Repayment of borrowings BEEE 30(b) (21,028,510) (14,373,890)
(Net Pledging of assets for)/proceeds from EmemaE (BHEA
other financial liabilities BEFER) /FEHRE  30(b) 252,347 (53,125)
Payment for deferred shares ERERR (9 1< 30 (26,886) (22,758)
Vesting of deferred shares IR 1D 57 8 5,594 26,660
Interest paid BEAHE 30(b) (258,490) (146,521)
Dividend paid ERE (392,896) (320,138)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEEEME(FA)
financing activities ZIREFE 1,573,945 (1,088,619)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and Re MRS EEY
cash equivalents g, CRd) FE 583,613 (409,069)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HZE&K
ReEHEY 3,247,498 3,559,192
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INETERE ) 2 B (585,481) 97,375
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+-—A=+—Bz2
ReRkBE2EEY 13 3,245,630 3,247,498
As at 31 December 2022, the cash and bank balances consist of R Z—ZZE-_—_F+-_A=Z+—H BR& K
HK$583,300,000 deposits for the issuance of the standby letters of credit. iR 77 ,é‘ HREeEERARHAEBERERZY
583,300,000/ ;T 1F K ©

F112E215B 2T AABMBRER 2 — 2

S

The notes on pages 112 to 215 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt %5 30 =& B &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -~ +—-F=+—HILFE

General Information

VSTECS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the development
of information technology (“IT”) product channel and provision of
technical solution integration services. The three major business
segments are enterprise systems which provides enterprise
system tools for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services;
Consumer electronics which provides finished IT products; and cloud
computing which provides cloud computing solutions and services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33rd
Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 23 March 2023.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. The HKICPA has issued certain
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. None of
these developments have had a material effect on how the Group’s
results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

112 vSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FTESTHESE w0

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1 IR E%E

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 comprise the Group and the Group’s interests
in associates and a joint venture.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except certain financial assets and liabilities are
carried at their fair values as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.2

114 vSTECS Holdings Limited

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on

an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have effect on the financial statements and
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

Consolidation

@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continuea)

@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 2.14, 2.15 and 2.18 depending on
the nature of the liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continuea)

@

116 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.9)
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture (see note
2.2(b)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2.7), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continuea)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2.7). At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether there is any objective that the
investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continuea)

(b)

118 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continuea)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see note 2.9).

2.3 Foreign currency translation

@

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation continued)

(b)

120 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the entity
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation continued)

©)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate at the reporting date;

(ii) income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

@iy all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FTESTHESE w0

(continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment 24 NNE - -BERFZE

122 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets
arising from leases of underlying property, plant and equipment,
is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have
been adopted are summarised as follows:

Buildings held for own use carried at cost X A FIE ) HEE BIEF

Right-of-use assets arising from leases of properties, plant and
equipment #1353 ﬁﬁ.%ﬁﬁFEE’JﬁﬁH%QF

Furniture and fixtures X & K& 2

Office equipment %A = :& 1

Computers & i

Motor vehicles J5E

Leasehold improvements & ¥ £ 2 &

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment continuea)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR (F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+ - A=+—HILF

2. FTEGHHEME »

24 ME-BERRKE &)

)

=3
s

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).

Gains or losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.7). Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on assets under construction until such
time as the relevant assets are available for their intended use.
When the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to items of property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

TFE

FH_A=+—RHLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.5 Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2.7). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Software 10%

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

124 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022

2. FTEGHHEME »

25 BEEE

AEEBEZETEERKAR
Rty (BFAEARABFEH) X
MEBBEIEK(RME2.7) R
MEEABELRAEXHRELS
RHER SR -

EERUBFHIELEESRE
NERZEEERFAIRFENE
BEBPMEBE-ATRBERAMF
HeBEPEEBHAHEREAR
M MU AFEHNT:

B 10%

TRFHAGAERZENVEE
TTHE- BEHEERLEEZAAN
FHAEBRZEMERESFHET
R WEESFHEREBERREMN
AXFHREEZRFHRER-
mE-RATRAFHAGRERS
RAERGOEBE R MERR EXHR
HAARFH BN EERHRK
RAR



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.6

2.7

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note 2.7).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) (see notes 2.8 (i) and (ii)) on the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, term deposits,
trade receivables and other receivables);
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continuea)

(i)

126 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables (continued)

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note
2.8); and

- lease receivables.

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
listed and unlisted securities, structural deposits, and
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, a joint
venture and other non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the investments in subsidiaries, associates and
a joint venture and other non-financial assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, a joint
venture and other non-financial assets (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets (the “cash generating unit”). The goodwill
acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of
impairment testing, is allocated to those cash generating
units or groups of cash generating units that are expected
to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of
an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in
the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

128 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, a joint
venture and other non-financial assets (continued)

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial period. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in the subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

()

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —

T+ -_A=+—HILtFEE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

U

130 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Measurement of expected credit losses (“ECLS”") (continued)

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs
on these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

(i)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the debtor
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is past
due. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

(i)

(i)

132 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2.21(jii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired,
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

in which case interest income is calculated

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

(iii)

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

v)

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under relevant accounting standards,
or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar
transactions such as in the Group’s trading activity.

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other
financial assets

Investments in debt and equity securities and other financial
assets are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the assets or they expire. These
assets are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments measured at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation
of how the Group determines fair value of financial instruments,
see note 3.3. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:

134 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Investments and other financial assets other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments and other financial assets held
by the Group are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the assets are held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the assets is calculated using the
effective interest method (see note 2.21(jii)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other
financial assets (continueq)

(i)  Investments and other financial assets other than equity
investments (continued)

fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the assets comprise solely payments of
principal and interest and the assets are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the assets are derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

FVPL if the assets do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the assets (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other
financial assets (continueq)

(i)

136 VvSTECS Holdings Limited

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2.21(iv).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost formula.
The cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,

demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,

and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s

cash management are also included as a component of cash

and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash

flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 2.8.

2.13 Share capital

(@)

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Repurchase of shares

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased,
the amount of the consideration paid, which includes
directly attributable costs is recognised as a deduction
from equity. Repurchased shares are presented as a
deduction from total equity.

Deferred reserve

Deferred reserve represented the cost of acquisition of
the Company’s shares through a trust setup specifically
for purpose of employment compensation. The reserve
is credited with the amount of fair value of shares on
granting to awardees, and the relevant employment costs
net of any proceeds from the awarded shares are debited
to the profit or loss. The difference between the fair value
of the awarded shares and their costs of acquisition is
transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FTESTHESE w0

(continued)

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities, trade and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

A Financial guarantee is contract that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payment to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantees issued are initially recognized within “trade and
other payables” at fair value, which is determined by reference
to fees charged in arm’s length transaction for similar services.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of
the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. The
Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract and recognises a provision when ECLs (see notes
2.8 (i) and (ii)) on the financial guarantees are determined to be
higher than the amount carried in “trade and other payables” in
respect of the guarantees.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2.21). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 2.8).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

TFE

FH_A=+—RHLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.15Interest-bearing borrowings and other financial

liabilities

Interest-bearing borrowings and other financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings and other financial liabilities are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and the redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

2.16Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FTESTHESE w0

(continued)

2.16Income tax (continued) 216 TS ® (&)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FTESTHESE w0

(continued)

2.16 Income tax (continued) 216 FTBH (&)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.17 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

@

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
plans, the assets of which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The retirement plans are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the relevant
Group companies. For employees in the PRC, the Group
participates in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the relevant local governments in the PRC.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

144 vSsTECS Holdings Limited

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the statement of
financial position date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

@

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained earnings).

Deferred shares
Deferred shares are awarded to employees who meet the
vesting condition (see note 2.13(c)).

2.18 Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contract

U

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B EERMEE (&)
BT F+A=+—HILEFE

2. FTEGHHEME »

21TEEEA (2)

(d)

Betn 5K (&)
EHMRERE cBRERE
BREBHARE - Lt
HBEFECHERBZ AR
FEELETAARE AR
MFEEZEARANER &
AEEBBERAREEZR
BEEEFAXKI) Ve
BEARBBIELHAEBREE R
HEAH CEIA/FAXZ
RESFLRAB URRE
REBcBREHE TE
HEAFBIFLAEAER
HRRAREEKREBEARA
B fn (B 2 53 8 15 1 TR W
BRI -ERBBEE
AHEEAER EERNEBEKR
RETEHERERMEE
RN BEREINARERS
BEREBBANRIL-

iR JE A% 19
BEREKSFBIEHIFER
EER D (REIFE2.13(c)) °

218 E AREBREE M

AN
EI%\

()

BHERERARLT

RENKREE
EAEERARARBEE
i 1t 3RO R o E AT
ERTTEREATLESRER
B 8 30 ATt
A 58 0 {5 T B 0 B0 @ Y 0
AEBTREZABER
BE-MEEEHNEERE
A BBEBRESETEL
PR 2 REE-

—z-——s45% 145
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.18Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contract (continued)

U
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Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of continuing
with the contract.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.19 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the

contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,

a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-
lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.19Leases (continued)

M
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As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.7).
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.19Leases (continued)

M

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any rent
concessions which arose as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In
such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were not a
lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual payments that are
due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FTESTHESE w0

(continued)

2.19Leases (continued) 21910 & (&)

(i)  Asalessor (i) VERHEA

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease MAEBEEADBEA ER
HEHrNETSHERSD
AREHEKLHE-E
HEBHRRBEEREERES
BRI B KD R R & O3k eE
‘““%%i‘ﬁ}\ﬁ-r HESYBEA

inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating

lease. When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub- BMEEE-TA HEHHE
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an operating RIS E Tﬂ o fis) AN & @ "B
lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from NHEBEA - 2HEDE2ER
the head lease. HEEENTHAREEY A

AREHENKEHEE-

2.20 Segment reporting 2200 IR &
=5 & ﬁﬁf%#ﬁ?%lf\]fiﬁzz
%

J

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item

pa

X B
t‘/

reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

150 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022

HB 28 AEHEH
AEBEERETREREAR LA
BARBEREBREHWRETE
R B R R B AE 2 B 75 B R
Bl o

BRIEDHMEBRUZEEREK
EERLERBEE £ETFMK
5 ZEPRUSEN ARSHE
mRERRB 2T EUNREER
BEHE BASEEALE D
TR BEREENREFE -
WEMFERAZEENBNA L
AR RE AR HEFAE -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FTESTHESE w0

(continued)

2.21 Revenue and other income 2.21 &= R H g A

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods or the provision of services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction with the
customer, and interest income is accrued separately under
the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes advantage
of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is 12 months or
less.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 such that information about revenue that
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts for sales of goods
that had an original expected duration of one year or less is not
included.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.21 Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

U

(iii)

(i)

152 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Service fees
Revenue from service maintenance contracts are
recognised over the period of the contract.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends).

2.23 Related parties

@

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

@iy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.23 Related parties (continued)

(b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries and the assets
and liabilities are mainly denominated in the functional
currency of group entity to which relate, including Chinese
Renminbi (‘RMB”), the Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$"), the
Singapore Dollar (“S$”), Thai Baht (“THB”) and Indonesian
Rupiah (“RP”).

The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk at the
end of reporting period is mainly arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in the United States
Dollar (“US$"), a currency other than the Group’s entities’
functional currencies, as disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements.

A 5% strengthening/weakening of the US$ against the
respective functional currencies of the Group’s entities
(except for HK$ which is pegged to US$) at 31 December
2022 would have decreased/increased the post-tax profit
and retained earnings of the Group by HK$73,898,000
(2021: HK$85,932,000). This analysis assumes that
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The analysis has been performed on the same
basis as for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

(b)

156 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its bank borrowings, details of which
have been disclosed in note 21. Borrowings carried at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.

At 31 December 2022, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit and retained earnings for the year would have been
HK$70,748,000 (2021: HK$52,685,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

©)

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables, term
deposits and cash and cash equivalents included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets. The exposures to these credit risks
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis by established
credit policies and procedures.

Term deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
mainly deposited in various financial institutions, which
management believes are of high quality. Management
does not expect any loss from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. The Group has put in place policies to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The Group’s historical
loss experience in collection of trade receivables falls
within the recorded allowances.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience indicates significantly
different loss patterns in different geographical locations,
the loss allowance based on past due status is further
distinguished by geographical locations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. BKEBREERATE

(continued) (#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continuec) 31 MEEKREZE %)
()  Credit risk (continuea) © EERR#E)
The following tables provide information about the Group’s TEREHEEBASERE S
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: EWRIBAEREERR X
BHEEBEMNER
2022
—Z=-=
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate % amount allowance
BHEBBLEY IREA EiEERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
North Asia pirGH]
Current (not past due) BIER (KR E) * 8,169,171 -
1-90 days past due w1 =90H 0.09% 1,188,763 1,099
More than 90 days past due ~ #1Hi% 90 H 53.01% 1,264,865 670,496
10,622,799 671,595
Southeast Asia REE:
Current (not past due) BNER (R Hl) 0.02% 2,149,993 348
1-90 days past due #HI1E90H 0.61% 913,381 5,568
More than 90 days past due  #1H8% 90 H 59.91% 154,686 92,670
3,218,060 98,586
Total mE 13,840,859 770,181
* expected loss rate is immaterial * TEHBELLERE N
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3.

(continued) (#)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

B EERMEE (&)
BT F+A=+—HILEFE

BHRREERATVE

31 B EREE &)

()  Credit risk (continuea) © 1EERR#)
2021
—E-—F
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate % amount allowance
FEHEBELEEY% RmasE BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
North Asia it

Current (not past due) BIER (R H) * 9,902,638 -
1-90 days past due B HI1E90H 0.76% 1,270,128 9,687
More than 90 days past due %18 % 700 H 63.28% 1,107,948 701,082
12,280,714 710,769

Southeast Asia KM
Current (not past due) BIER (R H8) 0.03% 2,373,906 595
1-90 days past due 1 E90H 0.05% 705,725 375
More than 90 days past due &1 E3% 7A90H 64.80% 145,189 94,093
3,224,820 95,063
Total B 15,505,534 805,832

*

expected loss rate is immaterial

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience

over the past years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic

conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

©)

160 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Credit risk (continued)
Movements of the loss allowance for trade receivables are

BHRREERATVE

(%)

31 B EREE &)

()

EERR (#)
EEY N CET LT

as follows: g
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—A—H 805,832 672,273
Amounts written off EMiE e (60,041) (13,414)
Provision recognised during the year T EE A B 5R ) 4 S 89,579 132,251
Exchange difference HEHZ% (65,189) 14,722
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—H 770,181 805,832
Liquidity risk @ mBEMERE

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s treasury
department maintains flexibility in funding by keeping
credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn facilities and
cash and cash equivalents, on the basis of expected
cash flows. The table below analyses the contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity
date.
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

@

Liquidity risk (continued)

3.

Notes to the Financial

Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

MBERE

(%)

BEAFE

31 B EREE &)
o FEIERK (B)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BHRUBRRERL
Less than 1
oron Between 1 and Between 2 and

Total demand year 2 years 5 years After 5 years
&%y - FRFZEX —-BCF —Z1% BBELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T T TFiEn

At 31 December 2022 R=-B==%

+ZBE=1-H

Borrowings EE 8,716,395 7,211,824 1,504,571 - -
Lease liabilities HEAE 239,348 114,185 73,508 44,605 7,050
Trade and other payables & 5 R E i fE 7R 14,116,329 14,116,329 - - -
Other financial liabiities ~ Eft & BB E 3,708,334 3,708,334 - - -

At 31 December 2021 R=B=—-&

+ZA=1-H
Borrowings - 6,468,771 4,878,357 - 1,500,414 -
Lease liabiliies HEEE 280,233 109,060 72,018 70,199 28,956
Trade and other payables 25 £ 1B+ 58 16,538,627 16,538,627 - - -
Other financial liabiities ~ Eft & B & & 321,173 321,173 - - -
gHexaramas —=- 555 161
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/total
assets ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
assets. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings excluding
lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31
December 2022:

BHRREERATVE

(%)

3.2

EXEBERE

AEBEEREAZBNRERAK
SEBERNIFEZE UAKRRE
A EE O RN RS R Rl
s ARBERREELARBIUR
EERKA -

RERBIHBREARE A&HE
FEHERNTRRZRESEHR
AR EEE AR BHITH R K
EERIE-

AEERERFHE MBEELX
ERER - Z L TREHFER
NREEE - BB FRZEE
E(reREgEag)RRe kB

FTERARARER =% =
ToAST-BZAREHE:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

=== —E-—F

+=ZB=+—-H +=-—A=+—8H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHBT FHT

Total borrowings (Note 21) BIEE (Mi21) 8,422,683 6,278,318
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 13) B IRE RIRITRER (HiF13) (3,828,930) (3,247,498)
Net debt B FHE 4,593,753 3,030,820
Total assets BEE 34,766,606 32,176,432
Net debt/total assets ratio B R EEL R 0.13 0.09
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

M

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value at the
statement of financial position date on a recurring basis
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined
in HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement’. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only
Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets and liabilities at
the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data is not
available

° Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using
significant unobservable inputs

3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

BHRREERATVE

(%)

3.3 D EMGE (&)

()

ARFEFEZEHIEA
(#)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-EBR BEER FER FaE]
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FTHET FHET FHEL
At 31 December 2022 R-ZBE=-Zf
+ZHA=+—-H
Assets BE
Listed and unlisted securities = &% 3E % 178,500 - 627,222 805,722
Other financial assets HitepEE - 227,986 - 227,986
Liabilities =l
Derivative financial liabilties ~ $T£ & R A& - (37,878) - (37,878)
At 31 December 2021 R-E=—£
+ZHA=+—-H
Assets BE
Listed and unlisted securities 7 % 3E F % 223411 - 606,724 830,135
Other financial assets HiepiE - 31,996 - 31,096
Derivative financial assets TESBEE - 7,384 - 7,384

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there were no transfers between the levels of fair value
hierarchy.

(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value

measurements

The fair value of forward contracts in Level 2 is determined
by discounting the contractual forward price and
deducting the current spot rate. The discount rate used
is derived from the relevant government yield curve as at
the end of the reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(i

(iii)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements (continued)

The fair value of other financial assets is the estimated
amount that the Group would realise, taking into
account the interest rates and credit worthiness of the
counterparties.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Approximate 66% (2021: 65%) of the Group’s unlisted
securities are related to healthcare sector. The rest are
related to various sectors including telecommunication
and e-commerce, etc. No dividend were received on
those investments during the year (2021: nil).

The fair value of these unlisted securities are determined
using adjusted net asset value. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the underlying
assets’ values. As at 31 December 2022, it is estimated
that with other variables held constant an increase/
(decrease) in 5% of underlying assets’ values would
have increased/(decreased) the Group’s post-tax
profit and retained earnings by HK$31,361,000 (2021:
HK$30,336,000).

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B EERMEE (&)
BT F+A=+—HILEFE

3. MKEBREERAFE
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3.3 D EMGE (&)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. BKEBREERATE

(continued) (#)
3.3 Fair value estimation (ontinueo) 3.3 A EEMEF (&)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements iy BEAF=ZEBHRAFE=
(continued) ZER (%)
The movements during the year in the balance of these FA-FZEHLATEFE
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: wEHEEHMT
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FHET
Unlisted securities: FEMES:
At 1 January mn—H—H 606,724 398,010
Additions NE 5,731 149,752
Realisations #HI5 (33,345) (11,635)
Net gain recognised in profit or loss FRREBERHERZFW =
during the year 51,304 66,073
Exchange difference PE & =% (3,192) 4,524
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 627,222 606,724
Net gains arising from the remeasurement of the Group’s B EASEHIELTES
unlisted securities are presented in the “Other gains, net” EEZFREREEEEER
line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. (B A FREIEHEZ5 -
(iv)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other v) MIEAFEINEZEHE
than fair value ENBEZATE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets 2 BN 3l B S B AR B BR B9 R
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost were EEemEERBENKE
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 HE B_ZT-__FK-%
December 2022 and 2021. T+ -_A=+t—HHRQ
FEITESERER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

To manage its working capital, the Group pledged certain of
its term deposits and structured deposits (collectively “Pledged
Assets”) to banks for issuance of letter of credits and bank
acceptance bills (collectively “Secured Obligations”). The
respective Pledged Assets and Secured Obligations have the
same maturity date with maturity period not more than 1 year,
and some of which meet the criteria for offsetting under the
prevailing accounting standards such that they are offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The table below
analyses the Pledged Assets and Secured Obligations as at 31
December 2022:

At 31 December 2022

3. MKEBREERAFE

(%)

3.4

RHEMAEERSME

&

REREZREES AEEKBH
ETEBTEREREBEER (5
HWIEEHREE]) KR THRT
NEZRERBRBITRLER (5
BMIEEREH]) - HES KR
EELRBHEFAEBAGHERD
BB BIHEBR BB AP
HOFEBTEENZKBEE
E FZREAMBERAIRA TN
i - TRHE T -__F+= A
=St+t—HMEEREEREER
B IEL DT

R-ZBZZF#+ZRA=+—H

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount

wme EHEH T

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FET

Pledged Assets EEREE 16,800,998 13,448,495 3,352,503
Secured Obligations BHRBEL 17,118,951 13,448,495 (3,670,456)

At 31 December 2021

RZE-_—F+=_A=+—H

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount

HE BHEeE REE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT FHET

Pledged Assets EEREE 13,456,792 13,202,313 254,479
Secured Obligations BHEMES (13,5283,486) (13,202,313) (321,173)

The Group included the net amount of Pledged Assets in
“other financial assets” and net amount of Secured Obligations

in “other financial liabilities” in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

AEBBCEREEZFRAA
RAMBRARAR HtbEREE]
W RE BERIFEE 2 FET
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@)

168 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Estimated write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-down
of inventories is recorded to the extent where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.

The identification of write-down requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and write-down of inventories in the period in
which such estimate are changed.

Estimated loss allowance of trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowance of trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss of trade
receivables.

The measurement of loss allowance of trade receivables requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and the expected credit
loss in the period in which such estimates are changed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Property, Plant and Equipment 5. MI¥ - -HWERRZRE

Buildings
Leasehold  held for own Assets
properties and use carried Furniture and Office Motor under Right of
improvements at cost fixtures equipment Computers  vehicles construction  use Asset Total

RENE  BAFIIEN

REE BEERRT BARKE BOERE Bl nE EREE GRERE 3
HK$'000 HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
TiER TR TEr  TET  TEr  TEx T TRT  TEx

Asat 1 January 2021 RZ¥--%¥-8-H
Cost KA 50,706 437,657 44,209 16,368 44,363 13,386 4173 347517 958,439
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (44,844) (71,164) (18207)  (12206)  (23,870) (9,016) - (101970)  (276.297)
Net book amount FEFE 5,862 366,493 31,002 4,142 20,493 4,370 4173 245607 682,142
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-E-—F+-A=1-H
IFE
Opening net book amount FORETE 5,862 366,493 31,002 4,142 20,493 4,370 4173 245607 682,142
Additions HE 3410 19,489 9872 3,333 10,127 1,170 400 84086 131,887
Transfer @ - - 476 - 232 - (708) - -
Disposals and derecognition HEREKRIEER (3,341) - (104) 29) (348) (261) (3,069) (4678 (11,824
Depreciation s (787) (14,519) (9,915) (2,067) (8,563) (2,015) - (90,608  (128424)
Exchange difference EAZEER 309 4,961 (615) % (468) 165 (79) 2,318 6,616
Closing net book amount FREEFE 5,503 376,424 30716 5,410 21473 3,429 TI7 236725 680,397
As at 31 December 2021 RZZ-—-%+-A=+—-H
Cost K& 11,442 463,154 53,009 18,776 50,576 14,339 77 396977 1,009,080
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE (5,939) (86,730) (22383)  (18366)  (29,108)  (10,910) - (160252 (328,689)
Net book amount FEFE 5,503 376,424 30,716 5410 21,473 3429 77 236725 680,307
Year ended 31 December 2022  BE-E-—F+-A=1-H
IFE
Opening net book amount FNEEFE 5,503 376,424 30,716 5410 21,473 3,429 7 236,725 680,397
Additions g 2,465 309,841 2,630 3,764 17,869 409 3,280 119,730 459,997
Transfer o - - 3777 - 114 - (3,891) - -
Disposals and derecognition HERRIEER - - (29 - (341) (54) - (68,677)  (69,094)
Depreciation ik (2,874) (17,587) (9,909) (2,559)  (10,565) (1,499) - (93124)  (138,110)
Exchange difference ERZE (249) 4,604 (1,685) (329) (1,125) (296) (1) (16536)  (15667)
Closing net book amount FREIFE 4,845 673,282 25,507 6,286 27,425 1,996 64 178118 917,528
As at 31 December 2022 RZB--£+-fA=+-B
Cost K& 13,789 773,077 55,499 21,029 62,005 12,189 64 322,195 1,259,847
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (8,944) (99,795) (20992)  (14,743)  (34,580)  (10,193) - (144077)  (342,324)
Net book amount RE¥E 4,845 673,282 25,507 6,286 27,425 1,996 64 178118 917,528
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

. 2 _
5. Property, Plant and Equipment continued 5. MI¥ -BERRZRE =
The analysis of the net book value of leased assets by class of REBAEERNDENHEEENR
underlying asset is as follows. All of the leased assets are carried at HFEI>MOT -FBHEEESKT
depreciated cost. EXARFGER -
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—4F
+=ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FET FHET
Buildings held for own use FIEE AMESF () 673,282 376,424
Leasehold properties for own use BIEERMEEYE (ii) 177,822 236,295
Plant, machinery and equipment L ERE TP g (i) 296 430
851,400 613,149
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit HAEETERNEEFENERIE
or loss is as follows: BEafTaT:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Depreciation charge of buildings held for own use 1 {EEBMEFHITEEHR 17,587 14,519
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets: FRAEEENTEER:
Leasehold properties for own use BIEERMNHEEME 93,014 90,492
Plant, machinery and equipment Vs R R 110 116
110,711 105,127
Interest on lease liabilities (note 25) HEBEF S (Hites5) 2,772 3,030
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Property, Plant and Equipment continueq

During the year ended 31 December 2022, additions to right-of-use
assets were HK$119,730,000 (2021: HK$84,086,000). This amount
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments payable under
renewal or new tenancy agreements.

Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note 20.
Cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31 December 2022 are
related to lease rentals paid which are within financing cash flows as
set out in note 30(b).

)

(i

)

Buildings held for own use

The Group leases several buildings for a period of 30 to 50
years. None of the leases include variable lease payments.

Leasehold properties for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as
its premises and warehouses through tenancy agreements.
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three
years. Some leases include an option to renew when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.

Other leases

The Group leases office equipment under leases expiring from
one to twelve years. Some leases include an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes variable lease payments.

Sub-leases as a lessor

The Group sub-leased certain leasehold properties for 2-4
years during the year ended 31 December 2022 and classified
these sub-leases as finance leases as these sub-leases are
for the whole of the remaining term of the head-leases. The
undiscounted annual lease payments ranges from HK$91,000
to HK$47,466,000 (2021: HK$530,000 to HK$34,953,000) each
year during the sub-lease period. The total discounted lease
receivables amounted to HK$92,160,000 as at 31 December
2022 (2021: HK$68,832,000).

ME- -BERSZE®

He_ZE-_—_F#+-_A=+—HLHF
B (FA#EEERNMI19,730,000% T
— T~ — 4 :84,086,000/8 ) ° %
CHIZHBBREA T HEHRE
BN EHEENZER-

HEBEBEMIBBESMHFBEEHIRNMK
20 BEZE-_—_F+-A=+—
AEFE HEMBRSREBHET AR
éfﬁim%ﬁ’]ﬂﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬂéﬁ%ﬁ ’ B%@
A M FE30(b) ©

(i) HFEBRHNEF

AREFEHEETEF HEHA
30E50F I ERERFEAEMA
SRR

Un%#éﬁ%%%%%
4B B B 1 4 1 2
Em%%mﬁ%%&“ﬁm%ﬂ
m B-BNSAS-FE=F-

5 0 1R B G AT
ﬁﬁgﬂm B0 3% 12 1 o B M
ERETEEENK-

(i) HMiE=E
FEBBEREAERLZHE
EHA—FE+-F-BHMLOE
REBYMAMEGEREBER
BMEEE - BERERETE
MEMK-

(ivy) 7 (FEAEHBEAN)
rEEREBEE-_ZTE-__F+=A
T+ BLEFEERSBEARTHE
EME_ZNF U#EZESAE
DEABREMRE HITENZSE
S ATHENGFTEHERE
R - AUBFERAENTR D
HEBABSENT1,0008LE
47,466,000 L (= = — F:
530,000/ Jt £234,953,000/3
ﬁwm_7__¢+ A=+—

CEMRENHEERELAE A
%Jmpm%m(_ngir
68,832,000/ 7T ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

. / ~,
6. Intangible assets 6. BEEE
Goodwill Software Total
fEES g4 st
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET
As at 1 January 2021 RZZE—_—F
—A—H
Net book amount BREFE 332,343 27,043 359,386
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z—-—%F
+=ZA=+—H
EFE
Opening net book amount FYIRMEFRE 332,343 27,043 359,386
Addition NE - 4,701 4,701
Amortisation By - (3,740) (3,740)
Exchange difference PE N EE (3,139) 861 (2,278)
Closing net book amount FAREREFE 329,204 28,865 358,069
As at 31 December 2021 RZEBE=——F
+=—A=+—H
Net book amount BREFE 329,204 28,865 358,069
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-_ZT_—
+=ZA=+—H
IEFE
Opening net book amount F Y IREFEE 329,204 28,865 358,069
Addition RE - 2,448 2,448
Amortisation 268 - (4,112) (4,112)
Exchange difference fEH =% 1,748 (2,116) (368)
Closing net book amount FRRHEFRE 330,952 25,086 356,038
As at 31 December 2022 i
+t=A=+-8
Net book amount BRTEFEER 330,952 25,085 356,037
The amortisation charge of software for the year is included in FRABRMHBBEERT ARGEEER
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. ZITHAXA -

172 vSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022



6.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

Intangible assets (ontinueq

The recoverable amount of each group of cash generating units
(“CGUs") to which goodwill is allocated is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. Cash flow projections for the purpose of the
impairment review are based on budgets prepared on the basis of
assumptions reflective of the prevailing market conditions. Similar key
assumptions are used for value-in-use calculation for each group of
CGUs which include:

(@)  Cash flows are projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(b)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rates included in the
cash flow projections is 0% (2021: 0%).

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate as at 31 December 2022 of 8.8% (2021:
10.1%) was applied in determining the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs. The discount rate used reflect the risk-free rate and
the premium for specific risks relating to the business units to
which the CGUs relate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance
(historical data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes
in the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount of
goodwill.

BEEE»

EokmBEc8MReELEM ([R
TEAEMDz2AKRE S RIZERE
B EZET - RRERMNETZRES
MERADREBEERBRERTRZ R
R AEET SHRSELEEN
HERREEMAZAUIZRRE
&

(a) BReRERBEERLEXERA
F ST EIFEA -

by BHERIELKETENZEAK
HEBREROR (DT - — £
0% ) °

(c) RZFEZZF+=ZA=+—AH2Z
BEATERIR X A8.8% (T = —
F:101%) ERAREERTE
=R VA N E R R )
ERMEBEERRBINEREBSE
EBAHBEREN 2 ERR

W

EERITEBRERAZEBEEREERE
HEMBMRERKRBE Z2FE DIRE
MINBRIF -BERR(ELEE) R
HEMBER2EREL -

AEEEEBREE AEAZLAETE
BRAECAASEAEHLEZES  TK
AREEHANEEEANRERBERE
[Elsak: o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries 7. RBRARZKRE
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are R_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HzZzXE
as follows: WBAR ZHBOT :

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/  Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment  place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
AL SRR DL
£H B2 TEXBREE Y BETRA/EMERHE Ef &
(Hi3)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding in the British 4 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% -
Islands Virgin Islands
VST Group Limited EBRAES NEBRaHBNFRAER  RERAEIETZEAR 100% -
Shenzhen VST Grand Electronic Co.,  PRC Distribution of IT products in the RMB100,000,000 100% .
Ltd. PRC
RNBEEEEFERAF i WA E 2 A AR RE R AR 100,000,000 100% -
VSTECS (HK) Limited Hong Kong Distribution of IT products in Hong 2 ordinary shares - 100%
Kong
BLEER(FE)ERRA 5E REEDHEANRER MREBK - 100%

62,000,000 non-voting deferred

shares
62,000,000 & 1% Z IR AR 0
Chong Qing VST Grand Technology ~ PRC Distribution of IT products in the US$20,000,000 - 100%
Development Co., Ltd PRC
EERMGRANEEREBRA HE RPESHEAREER 20,000,000 7T - 100%
ERELEANRERAR PRC Project investment in the PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%
ERELEANRERAR HE RPEREEERE AK#30,000,0007 - 100%
ECS Technology (China) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, provider of 11,500,000 ordinary shares - 100%
IT products and services for IT
infrastructure in Hong Kong
EARB (PE)ERAF B WEBREREERUREAM  11,500,0000 & @R - 100%
&E uu&ﬁ ABHEERE R R
ECS Technology (HK) Co., Limited Hong Kong Provision of IT products and 10 ordinary shares - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in
Hong Kong
BREAMBERAT BE REBRBEAMBRERREN 10REBK - 100%

B AR RIERY
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

Investments in Subsidiaries continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are

as follows: (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B EERMEE (&)
ZE I CF+ZA=+—HIEFE

7. RBARIZRE =

RZZEZZF+

“A=t—-HZz*EZE

MEBARZFHBWT : (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
ML FEEREAL
A1 BRIt B TEEBREE Y BRIRE/AMERFE B M
(H13t)
ECS Computers (HK) Limited Hong Kong Provision of IT products and 1 ordinary share - 100%
services for T infrastructure in
Hong Kong
EAEK (FE)ERRA 5E REBRBEANMBERRER 1REBR - 100%
RHR AR R R
VSTECS (Chongging) Technology Co, PRC Electronic settlement business US$130,000,000 - 100%
Ltd centre and provider of IT
products and services of IT
infrastructure in PRC
BEER (EE)MEERAH HE TEEFEEHETOREMR  130,000,000% 7T - 100%
BEm R AR R AR RIER
BHER
ECS Technology Company Limited PRC Provision of IT products and HK$10,000,000 - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
BEMHEABENEERAF il WP EREEAMBEERREM  10,000,000% T - 100%
RH AR R
VSTECS (Shanghai) Technology Co.,  PRC Provision of IT products and RMB174,380,000 - 100%
Ltd services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
FRBEEAMBEERAF i RPEREEANEERREN  AKRHK174,380,0007C - 100%
RHCERER R
ECS China Technology (Shanghai) Co., PRC Provision of IT products and RMB124,151,500 - 100%
Ltd services for T infrastructure in
the PRC
EARE (L) ERAF i RPEREEANRERREN  ARK124,151,5007C - 100%
RHR AT R R
ECS Technology (Guangzhou) PRC Provision of IT products and RMB82,786,600 - 100%
Company Limited services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
BMEARRERRA el RPEREEANRERRER ARK62786,6007T - 100%

R ERR IR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries contineo 7. REBARZRE w0
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are RZEZ—_F+_A=+—HH2Z2FEZE
as follows: (continued) MBARZHBOT: (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
ML FEEREAL
A1 BRIt B TEEBREE Y BRTRA/EMERFE B M
(H13t)
ECS Chongging Chuangying PRC Provision of IT products and RMB300,000,000 - 100%
Technology Co., Ltd services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
BEENEIRNMEERDA h RPERAEAMBERRER  AR300,000,0007T - 100%
RIERR RS
VES Supply Chains (Chong Qing) PRC Provision of supply chains RMB30,000,000 - 100%
Management Co., Ltd management and warehouse
transport services in PRC
BERREBHERERERAA h RPBRMEHEREE AHE  AR30,000000T - 100%
BWERS
R EREEREFRAR PRC Project holding in the PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100%
ATEREEREERAA H RPEREEERE AR H3,000,0007C - 100%
VSTECS Holdings (Singapore) Limited ~ Singapore Investment holding and 446,036,800 ordinary shares 100% -

distribution of IT products,
provision of IT services and
enterprise systems in Singapore

VSTECS Holdings (Singapore) Limited  #7 A13% RETIE R EREER HHE 446,036,800 & @k 100% -
MBHRE R REEARER
BREERS

VSTECS (Singapore) Pte. Ltd Singapore Provision of IT products and 13,600,000 ordinary shares of S$1 - 100%
services for T infrastructure in each
Singapore

VSTECS (Singapore) Pte. Ltd gl IR REEARRERRE 13,600,000 §REE1HMETZ - 100%
AR AR RS R

Pacific City (Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd Singapore Retail of IT products, IT equipment 150,000 ordinary shares of S$1 each - 100%
and accessories in Singapore

Pacific City (Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd HOE REMEREEAMEER & 150,000 BREE1FT KT 2L - 100%
ARBREREHTE Ak

Exeed Pte Ltd Singapore Distribution of IT products and 5,000,000 ordinary shares of S$1 - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in each
Singapore

Exeed Pte Ltd s IR D HERBHRERRHE 5,000,000 BREEE MK T - 100%
ZEARHRER R MRS ERER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 =2 —F— —

Investments in Subsidiaries continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are

FH_A=1+—HLFE

7. RBARIZRE =

RZEBE-_—_F+_A=+—HZ2EZE

as follows: (continued) MBARZHBOT: (&)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Notg)
FMRkL/ FEEREAL
A1 BRIt B TEEBREE Y BRTRE/EMERFE B M
(H13t)
VSTECS (Indo) Pte. Ltd Singapore Distribution of IT products in 2,000,000 ordinary shares of S$1 - 100%
Singapore each and 24,785 ordinary shares
of US$1.8156 each
VSTECS (Indo) Pte. Ltd I RIS HEARRER 2,000,000 & FREE137 13 T 2 - 100%
LBk 124,785 SR EI(E1.8156
Enz TRk
ECS Infocom (Phils) Pte. Ltd Singapore Investment holding in Singapore 2 ordinary shares of S$1 each - 100%
ECS Infocom (Phils) Pte. Ltd HINR RETIE R EREZR R BREERINE T2 LR - 100%
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distribution of IT products in 100,000 ordinary shares of US$1 - 100%
Indonesia each and 5,000,000 ordinary
shares of Rp13,000 each
PT ECS Indo Jaya HfE REEDHEMBRER 100,000 B#REEIE T @R - 100%
5,000,000 & f 1 {E113,000E)
APA-3 1
VST ECS (Thailand) Co., Ltd Thailand Provision of IT products and 21,500,000 shares of 10 Baht each - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in
Thailand
VST ECS (Thailand) Co., Ltd RE REBRREEANEERRER 21,500,000 5 KEE10%RH%2 - 100%
RHR AR R R &1n
VSTECS (Myanmar) Co., Ltd Myanmar Provision of marketing research 300,000 shares of US$1 each - 100%
and IT services in Myanmar
VSTECS (Myanmar) Co., Ltd e REBRETSEBRAREN 300,000 GREEIET KRR - 100%
RHER T
VSTECS (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. Cambodia Import and export of IT products ~ KHR20,000,000 - 100%
in Cambodia
VSTECS (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. RIEE REBRUSEABEEREL  20,000,000% #HEHRE - 100%
H
TREAZEHERBEARAF China Provision of cloud services inthe  RMB3,000,000 - 100%
PRC
TREAZEYEREERAT HE R EREERSE AR 3,000,000 - 100%
Note: K&t -

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established
in the PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

BRI BRIz B AR RINEBEREN
EMBAREREREMERT-

BHERERARLT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

8. Interests in Associates 8. MEIENTIHRESR
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Unlisted ¥
Share of net assets PIEFEE 321,954 648,077
Loan to an associate BB ENAINER 3,515 3,508
325,469 651,585
Listed outside Hong Kong REBUIMbE EH
Share of net assets DIEFEE 350,954 337,275
676,423 988,860
Market value of listed shares EHERHOTE 318,394 356,954
The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and is unsecured, BRYBE RN NERLNETTE T A
interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year. EEA - 2BERBEBHTER -—FAK
IE] °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

Interests in Associates (ontinueq)

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B EERMEE (&)
ZE I CF+ZA=+—HIEFE

8. MEBELNTIMNER »

DI

7

TE - _F+-_A=+—HBHz#B%E
AIFEBHT:

Country of
incorporation/
Name establishment Principal activities Particulars of issued shares  Equity interest held by the Group
£ HMRY/ RIBR FEEK BERITRNFE REEME 2 RE
2022 2021
—ECCF —E-—F
VSTECS Phils. Inc. Philippines Distribution of IT products 3,097,055 ordinary shares of 49.99% 49.99%
Peso 100 each
VSTECS Phils. Inc. FEE DHEARRER 3,097,055/ R EE 49.99% 49.99%
100 R 2 E ik
VSTECS Berhad Malaysia Provision of information 357,001,400 ordinary shares 43.18% 43.12%
technology and services of RM0.5 each
for IT infrastructure
in Malaysia
VSTECS Berhad ERAR AERETEMBEER 357,001,400 BREE 43.18% 43.12%
REB AR KRB 052 H 2 BBk
vServePlus Co., Ltd. Thailand IT services 196,000 shares of 49% 49%
100 Baht each
vServePlus Co., Ltd. g BB RS 196,0001% & X & 49% 49%
1005 2 k15
APAL Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Aviation leasing 1,056,000,000 ordinary shares 28.41% 28.41%
of US$0.1 each
APALIZRR B IR 2 ) HERS RgEE 1,056,000,000/% & ik (& 28.41% 28.41%
0.1% T2 BEk
VSTAM Technology PRC Investment management RMB500,000,000 - 45%
Development Limited services in the PRC
BEEAHBRERBRAF F RPBEREREEERE  ARHKS500,000,0007T - 45%

BHERERARLT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

8. Interests in Associates contied 8. REtEATNER »)
None of the associates were considered individually material to MaEmg A B mswRAsAHASE
the Group. The aggregate carrying amount of associates in the BEBEKN - ZFine MWk ATE

consolidated financial statements is disclosed above. Aggregate /N

Zi'ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁtﬁﬁﬁaﬁ ZANE S
DIEZEBERT Z2EATBEH

financial information (the Group’s share) of these associates is as

follows:

mr.

2022 2021

—E-= —ET—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Profit from continuing operations BB R 14,633 58,903

Other comprehensive income HEi2mEERA (42,425) (7,060)

Total comprehensive income 2HIRA LR (27,792) 51,843
9. Interest in a Joint Venture 9. REELENER

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Share of net assets DIEFEE 7,873 11,333

Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2022 are as follows: RZEZ_—_F+-_A=+—HBHz&a%
DEHBENT
Country of Particulars of registered
Name establishment Principal activities and paid-in capital Equity interest held by the Group
£ RIBER TEXK AMRESERFE AEEE 2 RE
2022 2021
—EZCHE —T-—F
Bozhou Botong Information  PRC Research and development, RMB155,000,000 38.03% 38.03%
Technology Co., Ltd production and sale of
smartphones and computer
peripheral product
EMHEBESE s HE EERHESH AR #155,000,0007T 38.03% 38.03%

BRRE

FTREEHAEER
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10.

Interest in a Joint Venture continueq)

Bozhou Botong Information Technology Co., Ltd is the only joint
venture in which the Group participates and it is not considered
material to the Group. Financial information (the Group’s share) of this

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

9. REeBIPENEDRS »

EMTEBEEMRERRAR/ESE

B2EEXK s HE——HAE

TS S 2

BELSHAEEBEN - NEEDHZ

joint venture is as follows: EECEZHBERNET
2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss from continuing operations FELE B (2,628) (18,458)
Other comprehensive income E2EIA (832 540
Total comprehensive income 2HEIWALTE (3,460) (17,918)
. =
Trade and Other Receivables 10. EZ RHEMEWKIE
2022 2021
—E-= T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables, net B 5 RWIE SR 13,070,678 14,699,702
Other receivables and prepayments b FE YR IB R TR R IE 1,260,367 1,528,965
Deferred expenses EEF 8,229 2,112
14,339,274 16,230,779
Less: Non-current deferred expenses B IR EIE IR S (991) (52)
14,338,283 16,230,727
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 = —F— —

FH_A=+—RHLFE

10. Trade and Other Receivables continue)

The Group grants credit periods to third party customers ranging
from 7 to 150 days, which may be extended for selected customers
depending on their trade volume and settlement history with the
Group. The ageing analysis of net trade receivables by invoice date is

10. EG R EMEWREIE 2

AEBERTFEF=ZNTEPZEEHNF7
E150R MEEEFPZEEHARTF
WERAEBZRFERNRLELE
R-BPRUHBEFRZEZARE D

as follows: ZHRESTWOT
2022 2021
—Es=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
0 - 30 days 0%230H 6,453,966 7,517,028
31 - 60 days 31260H 2,864,349 3,287,422
61 — 90 days 61£290H 1,313,735 1,356,124
Over 90 days HE0H 2,438,628 2,539,128
13,070,678 14,699,702

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were

EHLEMBRRBBREENATIE

denominated in the following currencies: R
2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FHET
HKS$ BT 14,297 8,493
RMB AR 10,451,034 11,772,853
Us$ ET 501,666 972,102
S$ b T 666,064 754,495
THB B 1,618,695 1,656,392
RP e & 1,086,527 1,066,392
14,338,283 16,230,727
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10.

1.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

Trade and Other Receivables contined)

Except for the lease receivables of HK$47,466,000 (2021:
HK$34,998,000) included in other receivables and prepayments which
is expected to be recovered more than one year, the trade and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense

within one year.

Other financial assets

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

BT - F4+-A=+—HItFE

10. EZ R EMEBWRIR @)

Rt AEMmERZIRBERESKRER
WBEBHEBE—FkEzEKEEXR
47,466,000 0 (ZF = — F -
34,998,000 7t ) 4 - B 5 I H fih & IR
HREEBRTITER-—FAKEHAERE

Bl 5

1. HitemEE

2022 2021
—E==-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
b= FHBT FET
Current TE
Financial assets measured at FVPL B RFEIA IS
FTEZEHMEE
— Unlisted investments —JELEWRE 729,276 677,958
— Listed equity securities — FRAES 76,446 152,177
— Other financial assets —HEemEE 227,986 31,996
— Derivative financial assets —TEeRMEE - 7,384
1,033,708 869,515
Financial assets measured at HEEH AT EZ
amortised cost THEE
— Pledged assets —KIREE (i 3,352,503 254,479
- Unlisted debt securities —JELTMEBES 0] 16,000 16,000
3,368,503 270,479
4,402,211 1,139,994
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

11. Other financial assets contied N HEMEE =
Notes: Kat -
() The debt securities bear interest at 8% per annum and will mature in 0] BB BHILFR RSB R =
2023. To=FFHH-
(i)  The balance mainly represented the letter of credit of (i)  #EEEZE A= FAF2,904,100,000/% T
HK$2,904,100,000 (2021: Nil) pledged for issuance of export loans (ZEZ—F:T)EABTHRNE
and terms deposits of HK$448,403,000 (2021: HK$254,479,000) 2 AR i Hi 17 30448,403,00075
pledged for issuance of bank acceptance bills (note 3.4). 7T (= Z = — % : 254,479,000/ 7T ) J5
ERBEITIRITE R RIE (H:E3.4) ©
The carrying amounts of other financial assets were denominated in the HthemEEREBEUNTEEE:
following currencies:
2022 2021
—E=-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHBT
HK$ BT 131,312 127,071
RMB AR 3,656,647 463,588
uss$ ETT 614,252 549,335
4,402,211 1,139,994
: €
12. Inventories 12. B&
2022 2021
s —E -4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Inventories on hand held for re-sale HEEHEETFHEFE 9,227,130 8,074,110
Inventories-in-transit BERFE 845,155 1,262,727
10,072,285 9,336,837

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is
shown in note 24.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

=
13. Cash and Bank Balances 13. REeRIBITHEE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Cash at bank and in hand IRITRFERS 3,178,295 3,088,051
Deposits with banks RITER 650,635 159,447
Cash and bank balances in the consolidated 474 Bf#5 AR LR A 2
statement of financial position B MIRTTHE R 3,828,930 3,247,498
Less: Restricted bank balances (Note) W LR EIRITEERR (HAE) (583,300) -
Cash and cash equivalents in the BERSRERRANZ
consolidated cash flow statement HekReEEY 3,245,630 3,247,498
Note: Restricted bank balances are deposits placed in banks to secure Biat: ZBRHRITEBRATRRIBITAE
issuance of letter of credits. RELERBZFR
The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances were denominated ReMRITEHEBEERBENTY EBE
in the following currencies: B
2022 2021
—ZE-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
HKS$ T 85,543 107,066
RMB (Note) ANRY (H3F) 3,236,434 2,253,657
us$ ETT 203,858 481,185
S$ T 176,943 155,205
THB BN 15,538 40,659
RP I 110,614 209,726
3,828,930 3,247,498
Note: Kiat -
The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in RMB are AEBMUARBEZRITEHRKTRIITF
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB WA ZRIT- AIMZEUAREEEZ
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds ERBINE R E ¢ H B 788 ST B
out of the PRC is subject to prevailing rules and regulations of foreign T BT AR 2 BRATHNE & 128 BY 2 28 451

exchange control promulgated by the government of the PRC.
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PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

14. Share Capital

14, A

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Authorised: JERE
2,000,000,000 (2021: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,000/% (= Z = —4:
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 2,000,000,0004% ) & I &
01T 2 EEK 200,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: EBRITLMREETER:
2022 2021
—E-CF —T-—F
Number of Number of
issued ordinary issued ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.1 each Par value HK$0.1 each Par value
BREEIETZ SREENIATLL
EETERREA HE DBROILTBRHE HE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn THT
At1 January ®—HA—H 1,455,171,998 145,517 1,454,451,998 145,445
Share options exercised (Note () BT 2 BIRE (HfitE) - - 720,000 72
Repurchase of own shares (Note (b)) BEEIZRH IR (A7 b)) (4,254,000) (425) - -
At 31 December Rt-A=+-F 1,450,917,998 145,002 1455,171,998 145,517
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. Share Capltal (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2021, options were exercised
to subscribe for 720,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a
consideration of HK$1,603,000 of which HK$72,000 was credited
to share capital and HK$2,275,000 (including HK$744,000
transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium account in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.17(d)) were
credited to the share premium account.

14, A (2)
Bist -
(a) RIEBIRERTEIZTRG

REBEE_T=_—F+_A=+—H1
FRE - BRI T LAE A B 1,608,000
78 T R KA A]720,0000% Ei@ AL H
72,0007 T &5F AR A - 12,275,000
BT AROEER EPEE
744,0007 7T B IZ BRI 5E2.17(d)FT & 2
CHBERERFEEEBRERMDEE

Number of Credited to Debited to

Month of Shares issued ordinary shares Credited to Share Capital
under share option scheme issued Consideration share capital premium reserve
REBREAIBTRO AN BT e EERYA RE HINTS FARBEE NREARE
HKS HKS HK$ HK$

R BT BT BT

January 2021 “T--%-f 720,000 1,608,000 72,000 2,275,000 744,000

Repurchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
repurchased its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

) BEEEAHRKRHD

REE—_T-_—_F+=_A=+—H1
FE - AQPARBIAMEREERS R

(BN
Number of Highest Lowest Aggregate
ordinary shares price paid price paid purchase
Month of repurchase repurchased per share per share price paid
ez Af BEOCEZERYE CASRESER CASREERELE CHLEEER
HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT
April 2022 18,000 7.10 6.98 127,000
May 2022 284,000 6.34 6.16 1,760,000
June 2022 682,000 6.31 5.83 4,163,000
July 2022 450,000 6.13 5.98 2,723,000
August 2022 218,000 4.99 4.93 1,080,000
September 2022 2,602,000 5.04 4.20 12,388,000
4,254,000 22,241,000

The repurchased shares during the year ended 31 December 2022
were cancelled and accordingly the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.

REZE_T-_—_F+-_A=+—H1
FEZEBORMEEE AARQ
RIZBBTRACHGRZERDZE
@o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

14. Share Capltal (continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

188 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Deferred shares

The Company acquired, through trusts setup specifically for purpose
of employment compensation, a total of 5,714,000 ordinary shares
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
4,308,000) from the open market for a total cash consideration
of approximately HK$34,965,000 (2021: HK$29,991,000). These
shares would be used primarily for providing employment/executive
compensation of the Group. The costs of acquisition of shares were
recognised in the “Deferred reserve” in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 1,805,000 (2021:
8,565,000) deferred shares with a total value of approximately
HK$5,594,000 (2021: HK$26,660,000) were vested and transferred
to all eligible employees.

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share
of the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

Annual Report 2022

14, B2 )

Bat: (&)

(©

EFE AR 1)

REBEZ2-_ZT-_—_+-A=+—H
IEFE ARAREBHNAREREMHE
MBZELERRAFATE LBAA K
5,714,0008% ( — & — — 4 : 4,308,000
BIARREBER ReRELEL
534,965,000 L (T = —F:
29,991,000 70) c Z ER KB B EE A
RIBERAEEZBIE TR E U
BRMDZKARGAEREBRE [E
IEfEE] NEER -

REBEE-_FT-_—_F+=-A=+—H
IEFE - #1{E45,594,0008 T (=&
— — % : 26,660,000/ Jt ) 21,805,000
B (= F = — 4 : 8,565,000/% ) iE fT f%
D ERBITEERTHMEAERES-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

@

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April
2002 has expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 whereby the
Directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion,
to invite employees (including both full time and part time
employees, and Executive Directors), Non-executive Directors,
suppliers, customers and other corporations or individuals that
provide support to the Group (as defined in the new share
option scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the new share option
scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company. The subscription price is determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s ordinary shares;
(i) the closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer; and (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer. The vesting period of
the options from the date of grant is determined by the Directors
and the options are then exercisable within a period of ten years
including the vesting period, if any. Each share option gives
the holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company.

15. AR 2 ¥ 2 &K

15
(a)

BHERERARLT

NSNS g ]

ARBIR-_ZEZT_FWA++LA
Kz BREFEBELREM K
NN -_E-—HEXNA-_+=H
Ky —mEam B R E S ([ 35
2 B ARBEBTRRRE
HEBFERE (PEZBREER
BEURNAITES) ENTE
EHEE BEEPEAAASEEREM
TERZEMAASMERNAL(E
ERMEBRERE) BN
NREARB ZBMD - RIEFHE
TSR ZERERS X
ZEEBOHBEETBSBBEARRQR
EBETRAZ10% REEmA
ARIEFCET UHETLRT
Hlz8EmE: (\ARAREEKZ
HEE: (VRB4 B 8B EH
ZEBWMERMINARDA L BR
Z2WHE: RN EZEELN A H
AAEEXABIMEL 2EH
HERAI AR ERAE 2 FY
WmE LA ZER
EEBPHREEET BRET
REZ+TFHRBERTE(BER
BH(wmE)) SHERERT
BEARMNREARG —KRER
%o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments conines ~ 15. ABRB X Z2EHZEE N

I8 ()
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continuea) () AAEERESTS ()
No share options were granted under the New Scheme during REE-_Z-__FR_F=-—F
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. +_A=+—BLEFE - BHER

AT Bl L AR AE

()  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, (i) WUTABREZERERES:
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of Bt REE_Z = —
shares for the year ended 31 December 2021: +TZA=+—BLFE M
BEREHUNEMZANRS
wHE -
Qutstanding Qutstanding Exercisable
asat asat asat Contractual Remaining
1 January  Exercised during 31 December 31 December Exercise Vesting term of contractual
2021 the year 2021 2021 price conditions options life
(HKS)
R-B--% RZB--§ QRZT-_-%
-A-A TZA=+-8 t=ZA=t-H B E Heh
HRITE RERTTE HRTE qFE 18 BB ANEH ANFES
Date of grant REAS (&)
17 February 2011 =5 ——F 720,000 (720,000) - - 2.221 2 years from 10 years 0.14 years
ZAt+t8 date of grant
BRMAHE 105 0145
Hor
720,000 (720,000) - -
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise ZE—FRNETREZER
for share options exercised during 2021 was HK$7.29. BRI B E 2 inEFHK
BA7.208 7T
16. Reserves of the Company 16. XD BB
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of AEEREEZSERNBI ZFINR
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the FREGZHEINGEAEZE IR
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in FKoARRAMERE=AK I D & A& iR
the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning TEE2FNRFEFRES 2 FF BT
and the end of the current and prior years are set out below: W
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16. Reserves of the Company (ontinueq

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

= —

=

FH_A=1+—HLFE

16. XD BB 2

Capital
Share  redemption Capital Deferred  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ROBEE EABEGRE ERfE B ZitEE am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TET TET
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(Hzt) (Hit) (Hit) (Hit)
Balance at 1 January 2021 RZFZ-F-A-HzEH 882,503 8,707 1543 (103,856) (654,241) 234,746
Profit and total comprehensive FREFHRZARALE
income for the year - - - - 365,729 365,729
Dividend paid BERKRE - - - - (320,138) (320,138)
Deferred share purchased EEERERR - - - (22,758) - (22,758)
Vesting of deferred shares ERRHER - - - 26,660 - 26,660
Share options exercised ERETRERE 2275 - (744) - - 1,531
Balance as at 31 December 2021  H=-Z-—%+-A=1+—-H
2HEH 884,368 8,707 799 (99,954) (508,650) 285,770
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZZZZF-R-Bz&EH% 884,868 8,707 799 (99,954) (508,650) 285,770
Profit and total comprehensive ERENRZABAEE
income for the year - - - - 445,960 445,960
Dividend paid BEKRE - - - - (392,896) (392,896)
Deferred share purchased EEERERR - - - (26,886) - (26,886)
Vesting of deferred shares ERRHER - - - 5,594 - 5,594
Repurchases of own shares BEAZRH
— Premium paid -BfT&E - - - - (21,816) (21,816)
- Transfer between Reserves - FEmER - 425 - - (425) -
Balance as at 31 December 2022 HM=Z-—#+-A=1—H
pd 884,868 9,132 799 (121,246) (477,827) 295,726

Note:

See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
nature and purpose of reserves.

EHREIMEERER,

R -

BHERERARLT

FRGEERDED
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PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

17. Trade and Other Payables and Contract

TFE

FH_A=+—RHLFE

17 EFRHEMENFERS

Liabilities FI=R

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Trade payables 2 5 B FIE 13,126,934 15,223,772
Other payables and accruals 0 FE AT FRIB SR FE AT S IE 989,395 1,314,855
14,116,329 16,538,627
2022 2021

—E-= —ET=—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Contract liabilities EHEE 451,720 708,830
Less: non-current portion R FERNERES 9 (2,379) (855)
449,341 707,975

The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to (a)
90 days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables by
invoice date is as follows:

AEEZHEFRAAEEREZ
ZEEHN FI30E90H - & 5 EN
RERBEZAHE D ZEE® YN

m

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiERT FHET
0 - 60 days 0Z260H 12,290,481 15,019,205
Over 60 days #Ei@E60H 836,453 204,567
13,126,934 15,223,772
() The carrying amounts of trade and other payables were b) BHREMENHERDBENLT

denominated in the following currencies:

5 S s A0

2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

HK$ BT 26,692 24,268
RMB AR 9,355,786 9,602,903
uss$ e 2,771,535 4,775,637
S$ ¥ b3 T 547,802 644,508
THB BN 611,163 573,498
RP ENEfE 803,351 917,813
14,116,329 16,538,627
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

17. Trade and Other Payables and Contract
Liabilities (continued)

@]

Included in other payables and accruals is an entrusted loan
from an associate of HK$nil (2021: HK$260,760,000). The loan
from an associate was denominated in RMB and is unsecured,
interest-free and repaid during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Contract liabilities mainly represent prepayments received from
customers. Balance of HK$707,975,000 as at 1 January 2022
(2021: HK$711,462,000) was fully recognised as revenue during
the year when the customers have taken possession of and
accepted the products.

Contract liabilities of HK$451,720,000 (2021: HK$708,830,000)
were recognised as at 31 December 2022 mainly as a result of
the prepayment received from customers during the year ended
31 December 2022 in advance of satisfaction of performance
obligation, and HK$449,341,000 (2021: HK$707,905,000) are
expected to be fully recognised as revenue within one year.

17. EZREMERNRERS

Had»

(c) HtbEMNRBERETHERE—
MBEQRRBIEZEXTERT S
7T (==& =—%:260,760,000/8
L) o ZER—MEBEARRMEY
ERUAREE ABEEIF.
GEMRBEE-_ZTE-_—_F+—_A
—t+—HLEFEREHE-

(d) Aﬁﬁﬁi%%é@ﬁ%mm

ﬁﬁm e e

4 %707,975,000%7& (==

:—E $711,462,000 7)) 2 %

BREHEABIEMERZFRNEH
R AWM -

RZE-—=_F+=-—A=+—8"
BHERAE L EEAL51,720,0008
T (=T = —%:708, 8300007&5
L) FZHRBEZZ
+=ZA=+— Eﬁiﬁiﬂ@ﬁ@
HWEFMEBREFPWETEN KA

j[%ﬁiu+449,341,ooo,%7z(f;
— —4%:707,905,000% 7T ) %

H

—FRNBREER B -
18. Other financial liabilities Hsmas

2022 2021
=== —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Secured obligations (note 3.4) EEIMER (H513.4) 3,670,456 321,173
Derivative financial liabilities MESREE 37,878 -
3,708,334 321,173

The carrying amounts of other financial liabilities were denominated in
the following currencies:

HitemaBBEz2REENR T EE
&:

2022 2021
—E-= —T-—F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FBT F&T

RMB AR #E 3,670,456 253,302
uss$ ETT 37,878 67,871
3,708,334 321,173
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

19. Deferred Taxation 19. IEEFL I8

194 vSTECS Holdings Limited

The movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

BEREEE,/ (AE)FE2 2N
T

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January —HA—H 138,094 134,282
Credited to the consolidated statement .ﬁ)\ﬁ Bm%k (Mitee)

of profit or loss (Note 26) 2,482 1,540

Exchange difference fEHZ (10,848) 2,272

At 31 December R+=—A=+—A” 129,728 138,094

Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

year are as follows:

ELHBEERABEEERFRAZE
ER U

2022 2021

—=E=-= —E-—F

Deferred tax assets - Inventories and EEHEEE-FERESRER HK$’000 HK$’000

trade receivables provisions RIEERE FET FET

At 1 January Hn—A—H 182,665 174,527
(Debited)/credited to the consolidated (0B FrAGREIERE

statement of profit or loss (1,488) 4,933

Exchange difference PE 3 =& (15,127) 3,205

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 166,050 182,665

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

Deferred tax liabilities — Accelerated tax ELEFHEEE - MEBRERTE HK$’000 HK$’000

depreciation and others R HA FBT FET

At 1 January wn—H—H (44,571) (40,245)
Credited/(debited) to the consolidated A (R GREBEEER

statement of profit or loss 3,970 (3,393)

Exchange difference E 3 =& 4,279 (9393)

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H (36,322) (44,571)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

20. HEAE

W-_EBE-_—_#H#+-_A=+—H HE&
BERTIEHAERE:

20. Lease liabilities

At 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 1 year —FR 107,841 102,530
After 1 year but within 2 years BRE—FEIAME 70,488 66,370
After 2 years but within 5 years BRERTFELRAT 40,673 58,709
More than 5 years ZHREAEF 6,246 21,923
117,407 147,002

225,248 249,532

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities were denominated in the

following currencies:

HMERBZEEESBRATIEEE:

2022 2021
—E-= —E - —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
RMB AR 105,539 146,102
S$ ¥ronsg o 7,058 10,468
THB B3 104,816 89,283
RP ENfEJE 7,835 3,679
225,248 249,532
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

21. Borrowings

2022 2021
—E==-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B+ FET FET
Non-current EFRED
Unsecured bank borrowings EIEFRITEE (a) 1,447,455 1,543,000
1,447,455 1,543,000
Current TE
Unsecured bank borrowings MK ITEE (a) 6,972,328 4,726,538
Secured mortgage loan EEMIRZBER (o) 2,900 8,780
6,975,228 4,735,318
Total borrowings mEE (© 8,422,683 6,278,318
Notes: it
(@  Unsecured bank borrowings (@ EEPRITEE

As at 31 December 2022, unsecured loans of HK$937,656,000
(2021: HK$935,885,000) and HK$509,799,000 (2021:
HK$607,115,000) were repayable on 19 July 2024 and
20 September 2024 respectively. The loans were unsecured and
bore interest at rates as disclosed in section (d) below.

(b)  Secured mortgage loan

The loan is secured by buildings with net book value
of HK$121,957,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$125,109,000). The loan contains a repayment on demand
clause and the portion of the loan to be repaid after one year of
HK$2,900,000 (2021: HK$5,880,000) is classified as current.
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21. Borrowings (ontinued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+ - A=+—HILF

21. 88w

Hrat: (&)

=3
s

The Group’s unsecured bank borrowings and secured mortgage (c) AEHEzEKHETEELER
loan were repayable as follows: ARBERARTIHBHESR:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHBT FET
Within 1 year or on demand —FARIREK 6,975,228 4,735,318
Between 2 and 5 years —EhRF 1,447,455 1,543,000
8,422,683 6,278,318
The effective interest rates were as follows: (d) EBFERT:
2022 2021
=== —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
Unsecured bank borrowings EIRMIRITEE 0.37%-5.95% 0.59%-4.96%
Secured mortgage loan BEMIEBER 1.05%-5.82% 0.81%-1.09%
The carrying amounts of unsecured bank borrowings and (e) EHEBWETEELEERFIRIEE
secured mortgage loan were denominated in the following RZEMESRBEU T EEEE:
currencies:
2022 2021
—E-= —EFE-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
HK$ BT 394,300 300,180
RMB AR 4,619,967 3,364,968
us$ E7T 2,785,556 2,206,409
S$ s T 34,378 86,701
THB £ 7 334,707 179,203
RP Elfed 253,775 140,857
8,422,683 6,278,318
mugxERagas -~ 4% 197



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

22. Revenue and Segment Information 22. W ko HBEFR

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent
with the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this
regard, the Group’s senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs
within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the year is set out below.

(@) Business segments

The business segments of the Group are as follows:

Segments Principal activities

E FTEEK

DHMEMDERAASEEZ&®ET
BEBABRFGOBRBARR D E
RORERMABER —Bz2T AR -
$%@2%%Eﬁﬁ%@A%ﬁ%$
2Rt ME AEBEZSETHRER
ABEUTEEERZARE D BE
m2%E:

REDWRANFAABZHEFTEZAEDE
¥E pEMERS ISR ELZEE

PlanE SH B - = BET B & & E b 5 B
NITHREHR -

FAXREERERDE Mo BRAF
EARAZAISREDRBER SRR T e

okk

(a) ¥ 5B
KEBZEBK LT :

Consumer electronics

Provision of finished IT products (including but not limited to computer, mobile phone,

drone, smart sports watch, 3D printer, game console, etc.).

HEET RHUEAMZERER (BRETRNE

ENH R ) -

Enterprise systems

f T EBATRE  EEEEF T 3D4T

Provision of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT servers,

databases and storage) for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services.

TEERR REAREMBRERRE CERERSRTA (REMS BRERS UniNTRRH 2

BIEE R ET) REMBHRERRERET AT

Cloud computing

iu ;%; TE{ \tu+ %LF/;Q?]_;Z%HHE%%
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22. Revenue and Segment Information continves

(@)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Business segments (continuea)

22. WKk pEEXR )

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2022 are

(a) XKD z)

HE-_Z-_—_F#+=-A=+—H

as follows: IEFEEzHEEEWT
Consumer Enterprise Cloud
electronics systems computing Total
HEET PERL EHE k|
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FTET TER FTER
Total segment revenue DEM B 33,075,400 41,357,772 2,890,822 77,323,994
Segment results DEHELE 477,043 758,083 103,262 1,338,388
Fair value changes of other HitemEEYZ
financial assets ANTEES) (10,120)
Finance costs HHER (258,490)
1,069,778
Share of associates’ profits DEEE A RRF 14,633
Share of a joint venture’s loss DIERELERBE (2,628)
Profit before taxation PR B AR 7 1,081,783
Taxation Fia (258,712)
Profit for the year F N 7 823,071
Reportable segment assets AREDLEE 10,808,474 12,832,163 881,828 24,522,465
EHexrrREmas —T- 553 199



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 — &~ —

=

22. Revenue and Segment Information continves

(@) Business segments (continuea)

FH_A=+—RHLFE

22. WKk pEEXR )

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2021 are

(a) B oI &)

HE-_Z-_—F+=-A=+—8H

as follows: IEFEEzHEEEWT
Consumer Enterprise Cloud
electronics systems computing Total
HBET LERR EHE ECE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET FHET FHET
Total segment revenue DEMEBRE 32,282,472 43,709,422 2,343,552 78,335,446
Segment results DEV R 570,922 967,775 91,147 1,629,844
Fair value changes of other HitemEEY
financial assets NEEEE 31,368
Finance costs H%ER (146,521)
1,514,691
Share of associates’ profits DEEE A AR T 58,903
Share of a joint venture’s loss DIERELEFBE (18,458)
Profit before taxation B 250 B A 1,555,136
Taxation Fi| (241,110)
Profit for the year F M A 1,314,026
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 10,467,968 13,763,772 718,149 24,949,889
Note: B

All of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022
and 2021 are recognised in accordance with HKFRS 15 and are
substantially from sale of goods which are recognised at a point in

time.
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For the year ended 31

22. Revenue and Segment Information continves

(b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment assets

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

December 2022 BEZE —Z - —F+_A=+—HIFE

22. MBERDEHBEE =
(b) AIREDHEEMNEH IR

Assets BE
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Reportable segment assets AIREDEEE 24,522,465 24,949,889
Intangible assets mpEE 356,037 358,069
Interests in associates REEE QA R 676,423 988,860
Interest in a joint venture REBTENER 7,873 11,333
Deferred tax assets BEFIBE E 166,050 182,665
Other receivables and prepayments b FE YR IE R TR 3R IB 806,617 1,298,124
Other financial assets Hiv e mh & E 4,402,211 1,139,994
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTH 3,828,930 3,247,498
Consolidated total assets RABARE 34,766,606 32,176,432

BHERERARLT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

22. WKk pEEXR )

(c) Geographical information (c) WEE R

AEB-—BEHIBEERIE

22. Revenue and Segment Information continves

The Group’s three business segments operate principally in
North Asia and South East Asia.

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET

Revenue Y 3=
North Asia ik gn 60,089,079 61,935,994
South East Asia REE 17,234,915 16,399,452
Total segment revenue o EBIR R B RE 77,323,994 78,335,446

Revenue is allocated based on the region in which the customer

WaERBEEPMELR DR -

is located.

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Assets &=
North Asia it 19,752,918 20,537,575
South East Asia REE 4,769,547 4,412,314
Reportable segment assets AISRE DI EE 24,522,465 24,949,889

Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the

assets are located.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

23. Other Gains, Net 23. HbUg A FEE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest income FEWA 20,172 20,565
Government grant T8 904 11,016
Fair value changes of other financial assets HEMemEEC AN TEE (10,120) 31,368
Others Efh 4,357 2,725
15,313 65,674
24. Operating Profit 24, #&E R A
Operating profit is derived after charging/(crediting) the following: CERFTEME/(FA)ATEE
#®EW:
2022 2021
—E-= —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cost of inventories FEAR 73,693,147 75,063,401
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments BEIXNA (BRESHE)
— Salaries, allowances and welfare —¥& R REF 919,972 947,770
~ Provident fund contributions —RESHK 158,423 155,258
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN B &
- audit fees —BRER 7,153 7,476
— non-audit fees —EEZEA 1,695 1,443
Depreciation of property, V¥ BB KRR ETE (Ki35)
plant and equipment (note 5) 138,110 128,424
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 6) EmEEEE (KHi76) 4,112 3,740
Net increase/(decrease) in provision for inventories 17 & & #&E M, O L ) F5E 1,403 (28,123
Net increase in provision for trade and B 5 N HAth FE U F IR B 3 0
other receivables R 89,937 133,119
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

25. Finance Costs 25. T EH
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest expense on: TYgE2zFMEMAY
— Unsecured bank borrowings —mIERIRITIEE 255,619 143,357
— Secured mortgage loan —BERLRBBER 99 134
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 2,772 3,030
258,490 146,521
26. Taxation 26. PiI1E
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of RigeBEaxkoHESEIER:
profit or loss represents:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiERT FAT
Current taxation NEARR IR
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENEH 3,436 4,085
— Taxation outside Hong Kong —BBIRINGIA 257,093 238,047
Under-provision of taxation BEFEEBEINGE
outside Hong Kong in prior years BHT R 665 538
Deferred taxation (Note 19) RERIE (H74£19) (2,482) (1,540)
258,712 241,110
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% EEMNEBHEREE TS -_ZF+=A
(2021: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year ended Z=t+—HUEFEZHFERE G L
31 December 2022. HME16.6% (T - —F:16.5% )&t

R
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

26. Taxation (continued)

Taxation outside Hong Kong has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at rates of taxation prevailing
in the jurisdictions in which the entities comprising the Group operate.

A withholding tax of 5% is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect
of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC earned after 1 January 2008.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong as follows:

26. BLIE ()

B % b S B IR 12 4 7 BT A AR Bk
DA B T B IR AR B RDR R
B ZBEHE

ERRAMURPEZIIELER -
ZEENF-A-BERBRMZENMAE
EZREDIRME%ZTERM

AEBEBRBRAEN 2 HBEEREL
MERELEZEWSBRIEEMNT

2022 2021
—E=-= —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before taxation B %58 A A 1,081,783 1,555,136
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% BRI E16.5%:T & 178,719 256,597
Effect of different tax rates in different tax TRBBaEERTRBE 2
jurisdictions T 27,145 (17,188)
Income not subject to taxation AR Z WA (17,747) (16,761)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes BT E MR 2MAX 43,653 12,201
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 665 538
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not recognised {5t RFERFHIEE B 2
MBEE 25,196 4,455
Tax effect of withholding tax on profits of the TR AW EB AT ®F 2
PRC subsidiaries HisEE 1,081 1,268
Taxation charge MIAZ 1 258,712 241,110
gHexarEmas —T- 555 205



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

27. Dividends 27. B2
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FRAEBEZENERF
Company attributable to the year EaiEEARE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiERT FHET
Final dividend proposed after the end of A 3R 4 HA R 18 R R HARR 8
the reporting period of HK17 cents B EBRI7E
(2021: HK27 cents) per ordinary share (ZZE=—F 2781) 247,000 394,000

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period

REESHREERRARELE

has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting REEHRERAEBE
period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) E—BFEEEBLILR
Company attributable to the previous financial year, FAMAERIKS 2 BN
approved and paid during the year EARERFEARE

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Final dividend in respect of the previous ThoE—EBRFEERFEARER
financial year, approved and paid AT 2 REARR B8 AR L AR
during the year of HK27 cents T (2= —F -
(2021: HK22 cents) per ordinary share 2278111 392,896 320,138
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

28. Earnings Per Share 28.

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$823,071,000 (2021: HK$1,314,026,000) and the weighted
average of 1,415,316,000 shares (2021: 1,416,939,000 shares) in

FREF

BN

FAGRERBFIEZARGEEZFEA
JE {h 3% #1823,071,0008 T (=T = —
% :1,314,026,0008 70) K B 1T
Z DNAEF 19 801,415,316,0008 (=&

issue. ——%:1,416,939,000 % ) 5 & o
2022 2021
—E-= —F=-—
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—RA—BZBEETEBER
(thousands) (FR%) 1,455,172 1,454,452
Exercise of share options (thousands) TEERRE (TR - 683
Repurchase of own shares (thousands) BRIAS KD (FI) (1,583) -
Effect of deferred shares (thousands) B D 272 (TR) (38,273) (38,196)
Weighted average number of ordinary sharesas R+ -A=+—HB2Z2EBR
at 31 December (thousands) IREEHE (F%) 1,415,316 1,416,939
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) FREARZF (FRRE) 58.15 92.74
Diluted s

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$823,071,000 (2021: HK$1,314,026,000) and the weighted
average number of shares of 1,415,316,000 (2021: 1,416,965,000
shares), calculated as follows:

FAGREBERBANEZARAEEZRFA
A FE 15 5% F1823,071,0008 & (==
— — 1% :1,314,026,0008 5t ) & i& 9
Z INHEF 9 #1,415,316,0000% (=&
~——4:1,416,965,0000 ) st &M T ¢

2022 2021
—E-= —EF-—F
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+—A=+—B8#{TEER
as at 31 December (thousands) IEEFEHE (FH) 1,415,316 1,416,939
Adjustment for assumed conversion of share a8 i I i i i o SR
options (thousands) (FR%) - 26
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+ZA=+—8H (&8 <z
(diluted) as at 31 December (thousands) LB E (TR) 1,415,316 1,416,965
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share) & #E B F (FREL) 58.15 92.74
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

29. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 20 EENSREEEMWS
Emoluments

(@) Directors’ emoluments () EEM=
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to RERNENIENFARRAEZESZ
Directors of the Company during the year are as follows: MEeBERAT :
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Fees we 1,091 972
Other emoluments E e
— Basic salaries and housing allowances —EXFEREREREL 10,586 10,633
— Discretionary bonus — BB TEAL 10,225 10,244
— Contributions to pension scheme —RIRESFTEIHER 235 228
22,137 22,077
The emoluments of each Director for the year ended KREEHRE_Z-_—_F+_-A
31 December 2022 is set out below: Zt+—ALFEZMEEHINNOT :
Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
BEXEFeR Bike
EEME we EEER By 1ETE AL STEMER Gk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TERT FTET
Executive Directors HITES
Li Jialin 4 - 5,460 5,540 18 11,018
Ong Wei Hiam, William TR 131 2,592 977 18 3,718
Chan Hoi Chau BRI - 910 1,790 18 2,718
Gu Sanjun BIE - 844 1,498 163 2,505
Li Yue *1 - 780 420 18 1,218
Non-executive Directors FHNITES
Xia Bin EE 120 - - - 120
Cheung Wing Lee lsaiah SRk 360 - - - 360
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFNTES
Lam Hin Chi Eny 120 - - - 120
Li Wi By 120 - - - 120
Wang Xiaolong TR 120 - - - 120
LiYi x5 120 - - - 120
1,091 10,586 10,225 235 22,137
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

29. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments (continued)

@

Directors’ emoluments (continueq)

The emoluments of each Director for the year ended

31 December 2021 is set out below:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B EERMEE (&)
ZE I CF+ZA=+—HIEFE

2. EEREAREEENS

(%)

(a)

EEME 2

REEHE-_T-_—+=A
—t+—BHLEFEZBMEeHEIOT

Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing  Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
BEXHe Rk Bike
BEME e E#8 B IEAT BE E BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET FiET FET FiET
Executive Directors WTES
Li Jialin FE - 5,460 5,540 18 11,018
Ong Wei Hiam, William TR 125 2,617 958 18 3,718
Chan Hoi Chau M - 910 1,790 18 2,718
Gu Sanjun B=E - 866 1,536 156 2,558
Li Yue 322 - 780 420 18 1,218
Non-executive Directors FHNITES
Xia Bin EE 120 - - - 120
Cheung Wing Lee lsaiah SRk 286 - - - 286
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFWTES
Lam Hin Chi Eny 120 - - - 120
Li Wei iz 120 - - - 120
Hung Wai Man HRR 48 - - - 48
Wang Xiaolong THEH 120 - - - 120
LiYi =% 33 - - - 33
972 10,633 10,244 228 22,077

Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include approximately
HK$480,000 (2021: HK$441,000) paid to Independent Non-

executive Directors.

No emoluments have been paid to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the current and prior

years.

During the current and the prior year, no Director of the

Company waived any emoluments.

BHERERARLT

X EZEENLREIN
T B I ITE F 2 4480,000
BIL(ZZFE - —F:441,000/8

L)

REMMBEFERBEAESFTI
NEAME FASRIIBEFMA
AEBHBEMAREER 2 8
BISRERBEBEIE-

REMEBEFE ARAES
I R 2 W EE A B & o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

. . = ==
29. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 20 EENSREEEMWS
Emoluments (continued) (#)
(b) Five highest paid individuals by EEEEFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the REBEFARAENEEaALTE
Group for the year included two (2021: two) Directors whose EMBE(ZEZ—F - MB)E
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. FHEELHMEEREXENNZ
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2021: three) DITHARB - FAZNTEHS=
individuals during the year are as follows: Z(ZEZ—ZZ)ATZH&
mE

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Fees we - _

Basic salaries and allowances BEARF & RER 8,966 5,003

Discretionary bonuses EETEAL 8,064 7,973

Contributions to pension schemes RIREFTEIH R 546 558

17,576 13,534

The emoluments fell within the following bands: B RRmT:

Number of individuals

AE
Emolument band B < &3 ) 2022 2021
—E-= T
HK$3,500,001 —HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T— 4,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$4,000,001 —HK$4,500,000 4,000,0017% 7T— 4,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$5,000,001 —HK$5,500,000 5,000,0017% 7T— 5,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$7,500,001 —HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 JT— 8,000,000/ 7T 1 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

30. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

30. ZRER

TR

EHRRM T

(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash (@) BB R ELEMBE
generated from operations REFHEZHEK
2022 2021
=== —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 FERT FHET
Profit before taxation R 75 B A 1,081,783 1,555,136
Interest income A EWA 23 (20,172) (20,565)
Interest expense B 25 258,490 146,521
Depreciation of property, YE - BERZBINE
plant and equipment 24 138,110 128,424
Amortisation of intangible assets Em A E 24 4,112 3,740
Share of associates’ profits DAREEE QR F (14,633) (58,903)
Share of a joint venture’s loss DME—HEEEEEIE 2,628 18,458
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment wEZAFE
&8 (as) 23 10,120 (31,368)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME WEMEREZ
plant and equipment 18 51 -
Operating profit before working EEESEBHA L
capital changes £ A 1,460,489 1,741,443
Changes in working capital HEEeH
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B 5 & H th FE UK IB LA &2
receivables and deferred expenses EERIR A (380) 1,966,144 (1,570,252)
Increase in inventories FEEM (735,448) (3,835,009)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B 5 R EAMERNFIE R
payables and contract liabilities BHaE CRd) HEm (2,393,466) 4,613,826
Net cash generated from operations CEFTBIRE F 5 297,719 950,008
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HIEFE

30. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(continued)

(b)

212 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Reconciliation of (assets)/liabilities arising from

30. ZEBEER

(%)

EHRRM T

(b) ﬁmmﬁ.ﬁ@ﬁﬁ?i(ﬁ

financing activities E) /BEzYH
Other financial Other financial
Lease liabilities Borrowings assets liabilities Total
HEEE e HiteBEE Hiuemas @it
(Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 17) (Note 18]
(Hi#z0) (K1) (Hstt1) (Hiit18)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tign ThET Fign TiEn FiEn
At 1 January 2021 R=E--%-f-H 261,739 6,750,812 (2,657,271) 2,778,062 7,133,342
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ REBEHRE4E:
Proceeds from new bank loans MERTEFAENR - 13,890,134 - - 13,890,134
Repayment of borrowings BEEE - (14,373,890) - - (14,373,890)
(Pledging of assets foryproceeds from ~ BEAEHR (BHAHEE)/
secured obligations FigsE ‘ - - (5,998,991) 5,945,866 (53,125)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERRERSNAEHH (90,584) - - - (90,584)
Interest paid BRFE (3,030) (143,491) - - (146,521)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BER & HEZEEE (93,614) (627,247) (5,998,991) 5,945,866 (773,986)
Other changes: A 2E:
Increase in lease liabilties from entering ~ RNENT U ERRHHE
into renewal or new leases mENNEEEE
during the year 84,086 - - - 84,086
Interest expense ﬂ BR% 3,030 143,491 - - 146,521
Derecognition RIEER (4,678) - - - (4,678)
Set-off of pledged assets against LA BEREEESE
secured obligations BERER - - 8,487,912 (8,487,912) -
Exchange adjustments ERAE (1,031) 11,262 (86,129) 85,157 9,259
Total other changes H%Wéb 2% 81,407 154,753 8,401,783 (8,402,755) 235,188
At 31 December 2021 “E--F+ZfA=1+-H 249,632 6,278,318 (254,479) 321,173 6,694,544
At 1 January 2022 }K‘Zg::i— A—-H 249,532 6,278,318 (254,479) 321,173 6,594,544
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ REBEERB4E:
Proceeds from new bank loans MEBTERGHE - 23,176,179 - - 23,176,179
Repayment of borrowings BERE - (21,028,510) - - (21,028,510)
(Pledging of assets foryproceeds from ~ BEAEH (ERFELE)/
secured obligations G - - (6,339,218) 6,591,565 252,347
Capital element of lease rentals paid BERAERENEEHSD (131,152) - - - (131,152)
Interest paid EfFE @172 (255,718) - - (258,490)
Total changes from financing cashflows ~ REB4EBESEH (133,924) 1,891,951 (6,339,218) 6,591,565 2,010,374
Other changes: Hiv#g:
Increase in lease liabilties fom entering N ENT L ERAFHHE
into renewal or new leases MENNEEEE
during the year 193,701 - - - 193,701
Interest expense FERx 2,772 255,718 - - 258,490
Derecognition BIERR (68,677) - - - (68,677)
Set-off of pledged assets against e BREERSH
secured obligations BERER - - 3,225,503 (3,225,503) -
Exchange adjustments Rl (18,156) (3,304) 15,691 (16,779) (11,010)
Total other changes EEHER 109,640 250,414 3,241,194 (3,236,513) 372,504
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZF+ZR=1-H 225,248 8,422,683 (3,352,503) 3,670,456 8,965,884
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31.

32.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had commitments to make
capital contributions of HK$20,928,000 (2021: HK$26,308,000) to
certain investments.

Related Party Transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@) Director’s quarter

The Group entered into a rental agreement with Joint Honour
Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li Jialin (“Mr. Li”),
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a major
shareholder, in respect of a director’s quarter. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly rental of HK$220,000 to
Joint Honour Development Limited (2021: HK$220,000).

(b) Motor vehicle

The Group entered into a motor vehicle rental agreement with
Joint Honour Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li,
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a
major shareholder. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group paid
a monthly rental of HK$15,000 to Joint Honour Development
Limited (2021: HK$15,000).

(c) License fee

The Group entered into an agreement with Kong Lung Ind Co.,
a company in which Mr. Li is a major shareholder. Pursuant
to the agreement, the Group paid a monthly license fee of
HK$14,000 in respect of the China-Hong Kong Vehicle License
to Kong Lung Ind Co. (2021: HK$14,000).

(d) Guarantee to an associate

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has given guarantee
to financial institution in respect of loan facility entered by an
associate to the extent of HK$147,319,000.

(e) Key management compensation (including the
amounts disclosed in note 29)

Key management compensation amounted to HK$71,570,000
during the year (2021: HK$70,070,000).

31.

32.

BANER

R-ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—H A&£H
ARAETHRELE20,928,0008 T (=
T~ —4:26,308,0008 7T ) 2 AKIE -

BEEALRS

NTRBEEEALTETZRS:

(a) EEER

AREBEBHREFERER AR (K
ARIERHRPTESTEMELE
(IFREENDNAETERREZDQA)
R HEBEERIIL—HHEER
FoRBEZWHE AEEMEF
HRAER QA XM ATE220,000
BT (ZZT = —4F:220,000%
JL) e

(b)y "
AREFSEERERER QA (K
REERENTEETEERE
EREBEZ2RBDIL—HAEM
EHm-BEZDBHE AKERE
PEEER QAN ATME5,000
B (ZZTZ—%F:15,000/8
TT) °

(c) BRBRE
AREEEBEEEXAR(TLAE
AXTEBRR ARG — D%
HoREBEZME AEERPAEE
WERET AN EEE14,000%8
TFEEBEQRR (T —F:
14,0008 7T ) °

o) mMEEQTZER
RZE-_—_F+_A=+—H &
SEEReRMEEBREEHER —
MEE AR LZERBMEER
147,319,000/ 7T °

) TEZEEEAEHE (B
M RE29FT IR R 2 £ 58)

FR TEEEABZHEA
71,570,000t (& = — & :
70,070,000 7T ) °

EHEREREReE —T--—s=5 213



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

33. Statement of Financial Position of the Company ~ 33. 22 &) Z Bf ik i 3/

As at 31 December 2022

R-ZE-_—_#+Z-ZF=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FET FAET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB R RE 116 681
Investments in subsidiaries KB AR 2 RE 7 2,115,161 2,115,161
2,115,277 2,115,842
Current assets REEE
Amount due from subsidiaries JE K BT B A B Ek I8 1,192,270 742,270
Prepayments FE FUA 264 207
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEeEEY 23,855 47,282
1,216,389 789,759
Total assets s E 3,331,666 2,905,601
EQUITY Em
Share capital A& 14 145,092 145,517
Reserves G 16 295,726 285,770
Total equity RS 440,818 431,287
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBERE
Amount due to a subsidiary JE A —FEIFfT B A B 3R 2,890,698 2,474,314
Other payable H b e 5RIB 150 -
Total liabilities wnas 2,890,848 2,474,314
Total equity and liabilities EZNEERE 3,331,666 2,905,601
Net current liabilities REBEEFE 1,674,459 1,684,555
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBERE 440,818 431,287
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on EEgR_T-=F=-A=-+=8#
23 March 2023. HE R BERE B o
Li Jialin Ong Wei Hiam, William
EM F1EN4T
Director Director
% EE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE - - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

34. Possible impact of amendments, new standards

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2022 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting periods

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2, Making materiality judgements:

Disclosure of accounting policies

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies,

changes in accounting estimates and errors:

Definition of accounting estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12, /Income Taxes:
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements: Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements: Non-current liabilities
with covenants

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases:
Lease liability in a sale and leaseback

beginning on or after

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2024

1 January 2024

1 January 2024

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MEBE

A summary of the results and of the assets
the last five financial years is set out below:

and liabilities of the Group for

AEMBETANBREE  2AUREER
AEEERIDT -

Y 1 72 E
Results 4
Years ended 31 December
BEZ+-A=t-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“ECCF ZTZ% 23 —T-NE —E-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET AT AL AL
Revenue Yz 77,323,994 78,335,446 69,961,881 66,209,921 62,481,961
Profit before taxation BREL A& A 1,081,783 1,555,136 1,247,265 1,009,507 946,999
Taxation B (258,712) (241,110) (179,685) (199,559) (206,172)
Profit for the year FREF 823,071 1,314,026 1,067,580 809,948 740,827
Attributable to: AT ALY
Equity Shareholders of AREERFBEA
the Company 823,071 1,314,026 1,067,580 809,948 740,827
Assets and Liabilities BEERERE
As at 31 December
W+ZA=1+-8
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
it et -3 % —TCTHE —T-NE —T-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET FTET THT THT
Total assets BEE 34,766,606 32,176,432 29,425,571 24,936,069 23,877,461
Total liabilities Z8E (27,108,828) (24,265,002) (22,599,285) (19,281,597 (18,830,739)
Total equity IR 7,657,778 7,911,430 6,826,286 5,654,472 5,046,722

The Group had initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January
2018, and HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under the transition methods and

approach chosen, comparative information is not restated.

216 VSTECS Holdings Limited
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